
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE & SAFETY DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT 

JANUARY 2023 

 

            BOD     TSS    

 

Faulkner Lake  15.6 mg/L (30 Max.) 17.7 mg/L (30 Max.) 

   

Maumelle   17.7 mg/L (30Max.) 17.1 mg/L (30 Max.) 

 

 

     CBOD   TSS 

 

Five Mile   13.5 mg/L (25 Max.) 18.3 mg/L (90 Max.) 

 

White Oak   10.9 mg/L (25 Max.) 19.5 mg/L (90 max.) 

 

 

 

Jaime Marrow 

Office Assistant II 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

    



   

                                     NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY  

7400 BAUCUM PIKE            PHONE  (501) 945-7186 

P.O. BOX 17898  FAX  (501) 945-3716 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 

  
 

Memorandum 

TO:   Michael Clayton 

FROM:  Scott Kerby 

DATE:    2/8/2023  

RE:   Engineering Department Major Projects Status 
 

 

Rose City and Military Drive Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation: The contractor 

began working on September 10, 2021. The contractor has successfully completed 24,364 linear 

feet of 26,215 linear feet of the pipe bursting project to date.  

 

Rose City and Military Drive Basins CIPP 2021 Rehabilitation: The project is substantially 

complete. The contractor is working on the punch list.  

 

Dixie and Baring Cross Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation Project: This project 

consists of pipe bursting 18,858 linear feet of 6” and 8” sanitary sewer mains and externally 

reconnecting approximately 398 services. The contractor has successfully completed 

approximately 12,842 linear feet of the project to date.  

 

Curtis Sykes and Meadow Park CIPP 2021 Rehabilitation Project: This project consists of 

CIPP rehabilitation of 20,955 linear feet of 6”-15” secondary sewer mains. The Notice to 

Proceed was issued March 29, 2022. The project is substantially complete. The contractor is 

working on the punch list.    

 

Lower Riverside Interceptor CIPP 2017 Rehabilitation Project: This project consists of 

CIPP rehabilitation of 4,344 linear feet of 54” reinforced concrete pipe. The scope of the project 

begins two line segments upstream of the Faulkner Lake WRF headworks and continue upstream 

for 4,344 linear feet. The Notice of Award was issued to Insituform Technologies, LLC on 

March 16, 2022. The Notice to Proceed was issued May 25, 2022. The CIPP installation is 

complete. The contractor is working on the punch list items.  

 

Curtis Sykes and Meadow Park Basins Pipe Bursting 2021 Rehabilitation Project: This 

project consists of pipe bursting rehabilitation of 27,194 linear feet of 6” and 8” secondary 

sanitary sewer mains and external reconnection of approximately 493 services. The Notice to 

Proceed was issued on April 25, 2022. The contractor has successfully completed approximately 

23,803 linear feet of the project to date.    

 

Biosolids Removal and Land Application: This project consists of removal of approximately 

3,000 Dry Tons of biosolids from the Five Mile Creek Polishing Pond and approximately 3,500 

Dry Tons of biosolids from the Faulkner Lake east lagoon. The contractor began removing 

biosolids from the Five Mile Creek WRF on June 6, 2022. The contractor has completed the 



7400 BAUCUM PIKE            PHONE  (501) 945-7186 

P.O. BOX 17898  FAX  (501) 945-3716 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 

biosolids removal from the Five Mile Creek WRF. The contractor has removed approximately 

890 dry tons from the Faulkner Lake WRF. The project is in the process of being closed.   

 

Five Mile Creek Basin Interceptors Assessment: This project consists of multi-sensor 

inspection of approximately 37,161 linear feet of interceptors sizes 24”-36” within the Five Mile 

Creek WRF Basin. Bids were opened on April 28, 2022, and the low bidder is Ace Pipe Cleaning 

with a bid amount of $238,034.10. The Notice of Award was issued May 11, 2022. The 

contractor has completed approximately 34,325 of 37,161 linear feet in the project.  

 

Broadway Area Pipe Bursting 2023 Collection System Renewal: This project consists of pipe 

bursting rehabilitation of 23,234 linear feet of 6” through 10” secondary sanitary sewer mains 

and external reconnection of approximately 315 services. The project is currently being 

advertised for bids. The bid opening date is scheduled for Thursday, February 23, 2023.  

 

Broadway Area CIPP 2023 Collection System Renewal: This project consists of CIPP 

rehabilitation of 37,112 linear feet of 6”-18” secondary sewer mains. The project is currently 

being advertised for bids. The bid opening date is scheduled for Thursday, February 23, 2023.  

 

 

 
 

 



NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

 

TO: Michael Clayton 

FROM: Lyle Leubner 

DATE: 2/8/2023 

RE: Treatment Report 
 

Faulkner Lake Plant 

• Installed rock to repair and mitigate erosion around East Lagoon influent pipe. 

• The plant suffered a hydraulic overload because of a heavy rain the night of January 2nd.  A 

recently hired operator was on duty to cover a double shift due to illness for both the 2nd and 3rd 

shift regularly scheduled operators.  Unfortunately, the high flow volume required an additional 

clarifier to be put online, and it did not happen.  The vulnerability has been mitigated with a 

retraining exercise with the plant operators while emphasizing the situation.  Additional alarms 

have also been programmed into the SCADA system.  No further issues of this nature are 

anticipated in the future. 

 

Five Mile Plant 

• The 700KW Kohler Influent Generator is still down due to low oil pressure.  RP Power brought 

in a mechanic from United Engines.  The tech sampled the oil while believing that it may be 

contaminated with fuel.  Lab results indicated that it was not.  RP recommended to change the 

oil again.  That work is complete, but it did not resolve the issue.  United Engine is attempting to 

diagnose the mechanical issue.  In the meantime, operations and maintenance staff have 

developed an emergency power failure plan to utilize our mobile generators to power only the 

equipment critical to prevent SSOs. 

 

White Oak Plant 

• The SCADA expansion project has made further progress.  Influent station controls have been 

entirely redone with a controller consistent with other plant installations.  New VFDs sized for 

future replacement pumps have been installed and integrated with a new control system.  The 

control program is functional and currently in the debugging phase.  Run status and alarm wiring 

have been pulled and connected for the lagoon 3 & 4 aerators.  Once programmed, the Ignition 

SCADA system will display the aerator status. 

• Bids opened on February 8th for purchase of new bar screens.  Purchase is on this month’s 

committee agenda. 

 

Maumelle 

• Additional controls have been added to the aeration blowers to allow both remote and on/off 

operation.  These features will help during instances of pH reduction due to low alkalinity or 

clarifier overloads. 

• Replacement Surge Basin Pump #2 has arrived and has been installed. 

 

Misc 

• State required annual Tier II submittal for hazardous chemicals has been completed for 2022. 

• Annual utility wide chlorine training has been completed and documented for our RMP program. 
 

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE  (501) 945-7186 

P.O. BOX 17898 FAX  (501) 945-3716 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 



NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER  

 
Memorandum 

 
 

TO: Michael Clayton 

FROM:  Brian Kirkendoll 

DATE: 2-6-2023 

RE: Pump Maintenance Report 
 

 

 

Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant 

 

• Replaced impeller & cutter on #1 pump at primary #3 

• Replaced output bearing on Blower #1  

 

White Oak Treatment plant 

 

• Replaced aerator #5 in #3 Lagoon 

• Installed new Inf. VFD’s 

• Installed new CL2 pump 

 

Five Mile Treatment Plant 

 

• Repaired contactor on aerator #124 

• Replaced steel cable on aerator #4 in West Lagoon 

 

Maumelle Treatment Plant 

 

• Pulled #2 Surge Basin pump. [has ground fault] Took it to AFT for repair quote 

 

Wilcox 

 

• Replaced overload on #2 pump 

 

McAlmont 

 

• Replaced flapper on #1 pump 

 

Norfork 

 

• Replaced PLC module 

 

Delta Lawn 

 

• Replaced fan motor 

 

 



River Run 

 

• Installed new #1 pump 

 

Sherman Rd. 

 

• Wired generator run indication 

 

Hill Lake 

 

• Repaired sump pump 

 

Oakbrook 

 

• Met with the landowner about gravel on the driveway 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE  (501) 945-7186 

P.O. BOX 17898 FAX  (501) 945-2367 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 



   

                                     NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY  

7400 BAUCUM PIKE  PHONE  (501) 945-7186 
P.O. BOX 17898  FAX  (501) 945-2367 
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 
 

  
 

Memorandum 

TO:   Michael Clayton 

FROM:  Marybeth Eggleston 

DATE:    2/6/2023 

RE:   Environmental Compliance & Safety Status Report 
 

 

The Annual Biosolids DMR was successfully submitted to EPA.  
 
The January safety training on “Chlorine Safety” was conducted via online activity. Justin 
Shahan from Operations created and recorded the training. The video was posted, an 
email was sent to all staff with instructions on how to access it, and the timeline within to 
watch and send back signed acknowledgement.  
 
A Safety Committee meeting was held January 25, 2023. The next Safety Committee 
meeting is scheduled for February 23, 2023.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
7400 BAUCUM PIKE                                                                                                                                PHONE (501) 945-7186           
P.O. BOX 17898                                                                                                                                             FAX (501) 945-4752 
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898  TMarshall@nlrwu.com 

 

MEMORANDUM  
______________________________________ 
TO:  MICHAEL CLAYTON 
FROM:        Tangelia Marshall 
DATE:   02/03/2023 
RE:  Human Resources Department Report           
______________________________________________________________________________       
 

Recruiting and Hiring  

• We currently have open job postings for an Accountant, Civil Engineer, Electrician, 
Maintenance Mechanic II, Instrumentation Control Technician, Crew Assistant 
(Manhole), Crew Assistant/CDL (Repair) and Utility Worker.   
 

Employee Benefits 

• Southwest EAP overview meeting with Department Heads and Supervisors Friday, 
January 27th at 2:00p 

• Aflac representative will be onsite and available to answer employee questions on 
Friday, February 3rd at 2:00p. 

• NLRW Retirement Committee meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 10th at 12:00 
Noon.  
 

Employee Policies  

• 2023 Employee Handbook currently in review by counsel.  
 

Safety 

• Safety Committee meeting scheduled for February 23rd, 2023, at 2:30p. 
 

Training 

• CPR/AED Training will be scheduled for designated NLRW employees within the next 
month. 

   

Holiday 

• NLR Wastewater will be closed on Monday, February 20th, 2023, in observance of the 
George Washington and Daisy Gaston Bates Holiday. 

• Employee Appreciation Day will be observed on Friday, March 3rd, 2023. 
 

   

                                                                        NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER                           

 



NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

 

TO: Michael Clayton 

FROM: Justin Shahan 

DATE: February 7, 2023  

RE: Solar Plant Report 
 

 

 
 

Month Total energy output Kilowatt hours Expected energy output Kilowatt hours 

January 74978 56563 

February 75619 59696 

March 119630 88340 

April 120760 90462 

May 140050 106920 

June 151070 108334 

July 158910 113218 

August 140810 100019 

September 143180 100314 

October 124160 88098 

November 74490 53767 

December 44330 32884 

 

2022 Total: 1367987 kWh 

Average monthly output: 1367987 / 12 = 113999 kWh 

Average daily output: 1367987 / 365 = 3748 kWh 

 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

kW
h

Solar Energy Production 2022 

Total energy output Kilowatt hours Average monthly output



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7400 BAUCUM PIKE PHONE  (501) 945-7186 

P.O. BOX 17898 FAX  (501) 945-3716 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72117-0898 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

kW
h

January 2023 Total Output vs Expected Output

Total energy output Kilowatt hours Expected energy output Kilowatt hours
*Expected energy estimates provided by Also Energy, Inc.  

74978

62340

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

To
ta

l k
W

h

January Year Over Year

22-Jan 23-Jan



J
a
n

F
e

b
M

a
r

A
p

r
M

a
y

J
u

n
J

u
l

A
u

g
S

e
p

O
c

t
N

o
v

D
e

c
Y

T
D

S
er

v
ic

e 
R

eq
u

es
ts

T
o
ta

l 
R

eq
u
es

ts
11

3
11

3

T
ro

u
b

le
 C

re
w

 C
al

ls
77

77

P
ri

v
at

e 
L

in
e 

Is
su

e
32

32

N
L

R
W

 M
ai

n
 o

r 
M

an
h

o
le

 I
ss

u
e

11
11

N
L

R
W

 F
o
rc

e 
M

ai
n

 I
ss

u
e

0
0

O
th

er
35

35

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
o
in

t 
R

ep
ai

r
21

21

O
p
en

 C
u

t 
(L

F
)

75
75

M
an

h
o
le

 -
 R

ep
ai

r
30

30

M
an

h
o
le

 -
 R

eh
ab

10
10

M
an

h
o
le

 -
 N

ew
 I

n
st

al
la

ti
o
n

0
0

T
ap

 -
 N

ew
 I

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
0

0

T
ap

 -
 D

is
co

n
n

ec
t

0
0

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

P
ip

el
in

e 
C

le
an

in
g
 (

L
F

)
14

5,
89

6
   

 
14

5,
89

6

P
ip

el
in

e 
C

C
T

V
 (

L
F

)
29

,9
56

   
   

29
,9

56

S
er

v
ic

e 
L

in
es

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 (

L
F

)
0

0

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n
s 

- 
N

ew
16

16

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n
s 

- 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

6
6

N
L

R
W

 C
o

ll
ec

ti
o

n
s 

S
y

st
em

 D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t

2
0

2
3

 Y
ea

r-
T

o
-D

a
te

 W
o

rk
 R

ec
a

p
 R

ep
o

rt



Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o
v

D
ec

2
0
2
1

1
4

7
9

1
0

1
1

1
3

1
3

1
5

1
7

2
0

2
4

2
0
2
2

3
8

1
5

2
1

2
2

2
4

2
6

2
6

2
9

2
9

3
1

3
4

2
0
2
3

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

SSO
C

u
m

u
la

ti
ve

 S
SO

 Y
TD

 v
s 

La
st

 3
 Y

e
ar

s



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 
AGENDA FOR 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 

RE: Committee Meeting 

PLACE: Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant Admin Conference Room 

 7400 Baucum Pike, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72117 

DATE: February 14, 2023 

TIME: 12:15 PM 

 
(1) ROLL CALL OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
(2) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 10, 2023, MEETING 

 
(3) CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2022 

 
(4) FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2022 

 
(5) ACQUISITION OF 7.7 ACRES ADJACENT TO THE EAST OF FAULKNER LAKE WRF 

 
(6) WHITE OAK BAR SCREEN EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 

 
(7) NLRW EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 
 

(1) 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL of the COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(2) 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED 
 

Approval of the Minutes of the January 10, 2023, Committee Meeting 
 
 

 

  

  



 

 

 NORTH LITTLE ROCK 

 WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD TUESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2023 
 

 

 A meeting of the North Little Rock Wastewater Treatment Committee was 

held on Tuesday, January 10, 2023 in the administrative offices located at the 

Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant. 

              

 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Matthews at approximately 

12:13 p.m.  The roll was called and a quorum was present.  Those in attendance at 

the meeting were Chairman Matthews, Mr. Sylvester Smith, Mr. Ed Nelson and 

Mr. Gabe Stephens.   Also in attendance were Mr. Michael Clayton, Director, Ms. 

Gina Briley, Ms. Tangelia Marshall, Human Resources Director, Mr. Scott Hilburn 

with Hilburn & Harper, Ltd. and Dawn Harmon. 

 

 First, the Committee reviewed the minutes of its December 13, 2022 meeting.  

After review, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to 

approve the December 13, 2022 minutes as submitted.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 The Committee then reviewed the cash disbursements for December 2022.  A 

motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to approve the cash 

disbursements showing total cash disbursement of $3,353,660.71 and fund transfers 

between accounts of $1,759,000.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 Next, the Committee reviewed the financial statement dated December 2022. 

Director Clayton advised that at the end of December an accounting adjustment 

was made in the amount of $1.7 million to fund the disposal of biosolids.  Upon 

motion made by Mr. Nelson,  seconded by Mr. Stephens, the Committee 

unanimously approved with financial statement for December 2022. 

 

 Director Clayton then updated the Committee on the January 6, 2023 

highlights.  These highlights are attached to the minutes and incorporated herein. 

 

 A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Stephens, to excuse the 

absence of Ms. Bryant from the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 There being no further action to come before the Committee, a motion was 

made by Mr. Smith to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried unanimously, and 

the meeting was adjourned at approximately 12:49 p.m. 

 



 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 

 

 

 

K.  W.  MATTHEWS, CHAIRMAN  SYLVESTER SMITH, 

       VICE-CHAIRMAN/SECRETARY 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

(3) 
 
 
 
 
 

CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED 
 
 
 

Approval of the Cash Disbursements for January 2023 showing total  

Cash Disbursements of $1,787,942.48 and  

Fund Transfers between accounts of $1,318,800.00. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

5
6
2
6
5

O
C

S
E

 C
le

a
ri

n
g
h
o
u
s
e
 S

D
U

1
,1

7
8
.0

6
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
h
ild

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 7

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 -

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
/2

0
2
3

5
6
2
6
6

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 U

n
it
e
d
 W

a
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
.0

0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 C

h
a
ri

ta
b
le

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s

5
6
2
6
7

N
L
R

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

.0
0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 W
e
lln

e
s
s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 2
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
/2

0
2
3

N
A

T
-0

1
N

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,2

3
1
.4

6
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
/2

0
2
3

P
R

-0
1

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
 D

e
p
o
s
it

  
  
  
  
  
4
4
,1

8
4
.6

2
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
e
s
 P

a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
/2

0
2
3

5
6
2
6
8

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 F

lu
id

 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
5
3
0
.5

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 2
 x

 W
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
ly

 R
e
g
u
la

to
rs

 f
o
r 

F
L
T

P
 B

e
lt
 P

re
s
s
 

5
6
2
6
9

A
la

rm
te

c
 S

y
s
te

m
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

5
4
.7

8
 

C
S

&
E

 B
ld

g
 F

ir
e
 A

la
rm

 M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 -

 A
n
n
u
a
l

5
6
2
7
0

A
P

E
H

R
A

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
.0

0
 

2
0
2
3
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

D
u
e
s

5
6
2
7
1

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 A

n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l,
 I
n
c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

0
0
.0

0
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 B

io
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 -

 5
-M

ile
 P

e
rm

it
 R

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t

5
6
2
7
2

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 F

ilt
e
r,

 I
n
c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

4
5
.9

4
 

F
A

1
1
6
3
-1

8
 f

o
r 

F
L
T

P
 B

lo
w

e
rs

5
6
2
7
3

A
T

&
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
1
.0

0
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 D

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 D

e
n
ia

l 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
/S

e
c
u
ri

ty

5
6
2
7
4

A
R

 W
a
te

r 
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

0
0
.0

0
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

x
a
m

s
 f

o
r 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 O

p
e
ra

to
r 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 (

1
0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
)

5
6
2
7
5

B
a
tt
e
ry

 O
u
tf

it
te

rs
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
4
.4

3
 

U
n
it
 1

5
3
 -

 B
a
tt
e
ry

5
6
2
7
6

B
o
s
to

n
 M

u
tu

a
l 
L
if
e
 I
n
c
. 
C

o
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

4
0
.4

1
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

5
6
2
7
7

C
in

ta
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

6
.2

0
 

R
a
in

 C
o
a
t 
- 

1
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e

5
6
2
7
8

C
o
re

 &
 M

a
in

, 
L
P

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
0
.5

7
 

1
1
 x

 P
V

C
 C

/P
L
G

 -
 I
n
v
e
n
to

ry

5
6
2
7
9

C
ra

n
fo

rd
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,5

9
8
.9

8
 

A
s
p
h
a
lt
 R

e
p
a
ir

s
 -

 W
a
rd

 2
 &

 W
. 
1
6
th

 S
t.

5
6
2
8
0

C
ro

w
 B

u
rl

in
g
a
m

e
 C

o
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

0
.8

2
 

U
n
it
 1

0
9
 -

 M
in

ia
tu

re
 L

a
m

p
, 
2
4
 Q

t.
 D

ra
in

 C
o
n
ta

in
e
r,

 W
h
it
e
 P

a
in

t 
M

a
rk

e
r,

 C
a
b
le

 

T
ie

s

5
6
2
8
1

C
ro

w
 B

u
rl

in
g
a
m

e
 C

o
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

7
.3

3
 

U
n
it
 1

1
3
 -

 W
ip

e
r 

B
la

d
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

n
ti
fr

e
e
z
e

5
6
2
8
2

D
a
rr

a
g
h
 C

o
/T

o
o
l 
C

e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

5
0
.4

3
 

1
0
 x

 D
ia

m
o
n
d
 B

la
d
e
s
 f

o
r 

C
u
t 
O

ff
 S

a
w

s

5
6
2
8
3

D
e
p
t.
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 &

 A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
1
7
,7

5
1
.9

3
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

S
ta

te
 W

it
h
h
o
ld

in
g

5
6
2
8
4

E
lli

o
tt
 E

le
c
tr

ic
 S

u
p
p
ly

, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

3
5
.4

0
 

V
a
ri

o
u
s
 t
y
p
e
s
 o

f 
w

ir
in

g
, 
M

a
le

 A
d
a
p
te

r,
 P

V
C

 C
o
u
p
lin

g
, 
P

V
C

 E
lb

o
w

s
, 
R

a
d
ia

n
t 
S

e
lf
 

T
e
s
t,
 I
N

 U
s
e
 C

o
v
e
r

5
6
2
8
5

E
n
a
v
a
te

 S
M

B
, 
L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

2
8
.7

5
 

G
re

a
t 
P

la
in

s
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

 

5
6
2
8
6

F
L
 D

a
v
is

 S
h
e
rw

o
o
d
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

9
.6

8
 

S
c
h
. 
4
0
 P

ip
e
, 
P

V
C

 C
o
u
p
lin

g

5
6
2
8
7

F
a
lk

 S
u
p
p
ly

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
4
.3

6
 

S
c
h
. 
4
0
 P

V
C

 C
o
u
p
lin

g
s
, 
P

V
C

 M
a
le

 A
d
a
p
te

rs
, 
9
0
 E

lls
 S

c
h
 8

0
, 
S

X
S

 B
u
s
h
in

g
, 
P

V
C

 

S
c
h
 8

0
 B

E
 P

ip
e

5
6
2
8
8

F
u
lle

r 
a
n
d
 S

o
n
 M

a
u
m

e
lle

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

0
9
.2

9
 

P
V

C
 2

" 
C

o
n
d
u
it
,P

V
C

 C
a
p
, 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

la
m

p
s
, 
T

e
rm

in
a
l 
A

d
a
p
te

rs
, 
2
" 

S
te

e
l 

L
o
c
k
n
u
ts

, 
B

a
tt
e
ri

e
s
, 
C

e
ra

m
ic

 H
e
a
te

rs
, 
P

ro
p
a
n
e
, 
S

o
c
k
e
t 
S

e
t,
 P

ip
e
 W

ra
p
, 
C

o
p
p
e
r 

P
ip

e
, 
S

h
a
rk

b
it
e
, 
Q

u
ic

k
 C

o
n
n
e
c
t

5
6
2
8
9

G
ib

b
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
5
,2

6
6
.9

5
 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

B
o
ile

r 
P

ip
e
, 
P

a
rt

s
 &

 L
a
b
o
r/

 -
 L

a
b

5
6
2
9
0

G
o
o
d
s
e
ll 

T
ru

c
k
 A

c
c
e
s
s
o
ri

e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

9
4
.6

7
 

U
n
it
 1

1
6
 -

 T
o
o
l 
B

o
x
 a

n
d
 F

lo
o
r 

M
a
ts

5
6
2
9
1

G
ra

in
g
e
r

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

6
3
.7

5
 

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 L

a
d
d
e
r,

 F
u
s
e
s
, 
D

o
u
b
le

 P
o
in

t 
H

o
o
k

5
6
2
9
2

G
ra

n
it
e
 M

o
u
n
ta

in
 Q

u
a
rr

ie
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
8
,8

4
9
.2

8
 

S
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 G

ra
v
e
l/
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

5
6
2
9
3

G
re

e
n
 &

 C
h
a
p
m

a
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,5

5
3
.5

7
 

D
ie

s
e
l 
F

u
e
l 

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

P
a
g
e
 1



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

5
6
2
9
4

H
C

I,
 I
n
c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

6
4
.2

5
 

M
o
v
e
d
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 E

x
te

n
s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 o
n
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t
o
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

(1
1
8
)

5
6
2
9
5

H
o
m

e
 D

e
p
o
t 
C

re
d
it
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,4

7
0
.0

3
 

B
ru

s
h
le

s
s
/C

o
rd

le
s
s
 5

-T
o
o
l 
C

o
m

b
o
 K

it
, 
C

o
rd

le
s
s
 A

u
to

m
o
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

b
o
 K

it
, 
C

o
n
d
u
it
s
, 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 B

o
x
e
s
, 
L
o
c
k
n
u
ts

, 
T

e
rm

in
a
l 
A

d
a
p
te

rs
, 
E

lb
o
w

s
, 
P

V
C

 S
o
lv

e
n
t 
C

e
m

e
n
t,
 

C
o
u
p
lin

g
s
, 
M

K
E

 B
i-

M
e
ta

l 
S

e
t,
 M

K
E

 S
h
o
c
k
w

a
v
e
 S

e
t,
  
1
1
2
 x

 6
0
L
B

 Q
u
ik

re
te

5
6
2
9
6

H
u
m

's
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,0

4
6
.6

1
 

L
a
n
te

rn
 B

a
tt
e
ri

e
s
, 
R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 F
la

s
h
lig

h
t,
 5

0
0
' P

o
ly

 R
o
p
e
, 
C

a
u
lk

, 
G

a
ra

g
e
 D

o
o
r 

L
u
b
e
, 
S

in
g
le

 C
u
t 
K

e
y
s
, 
H

e
a
te

r,
 S

p
ra

y
 P

a
in

t,
 D

e
a
d
 B

lo
w

 H
a
m

m
e
r,

 Q
u
ic

k
 R

e
le

a
s
e
 

R
a
tc

h
e
t,
 P

u
s
h
 B

ro
o
m

, 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 R

a
k
e
, 
C

le
v
is

 P
in

, 
L
y
n
c
h
 P

in
s
, 
H

o
le

 S
a
w

 S
e
t,
 

G
lo

v
e
s
, 
C

le
a
n
e
r 

M
o
ti
v
e
, 
S

c
re

w
 E

x
tr

a
c
to

r,
 T

a
p
, 
T

a
p
 W

re
n
c
h
, 
B

ib
 C

o
v
e
ra

ll,
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

 W
h
e
e
l,
 B

ib
 O

w
e
ra

lls
, 
R

a
in

s
u
it
, 
P

ro
p
a
n
e
 R

e
fi
ll,

 F
a
u
c
e
t 
C

o
v
e
rs

, 
B

a
ll 

V
a
lv

e
s
, 
T

E
E

, 
S

tr
a
w

 B
a
le

s
, 
C

a
b
le

 C
h
a
rg

in
g
 B

ra
id

, 
M

a
rk

e
rs

, 
W

in
g
 N

u
ts

, 
K

n
o
b
s
, 
2
5
' 

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 C

o
rd

s
, 
H

e
a
t 
T

a
p
e
, 
D

u
c
t 
T

a
p
e
, 
H

e
a
t 
L
a
m

p
, 
B

y
p
a
s
s
 L

o
p
p
e
r,

 H
e
a
ri

n
g
 

P
ro

te
c
to

rs
, 
A

C
 C

o
rd

, 
P

ip
e
 I
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
H

e
x
 C

a
p
s
, 
H

e
x
 N

u
ts

, 
2
-c

y
c
le

 O
il,

 D
is

c
 F

la
p
s

5
6
2
9
7

H
u
m

's
 R

e
n
ta

l
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,2

7
0
.5

5
 

B
u
g
g
y
/W

a
rd

 1
, 
L
a
b
o
r,

 E
n
g
in

e
 O

il,
 C

o
o
la

n
t,
 C

o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r 

O
il/

F
L
T

P
 A

ir
 C

o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r,

 

A
ir

 H
o
s
e
, 
C

o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r/

S
h
e
ri

d
a
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
E

x
c
a
v
a
to

r/
W

a
rd

1

5
6
2
9
8

IC
M

 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,2

0
7
.7

9
 

U
n
it
 1

4
4
 C

le
a
n
in

g
 N

o
z
z
le

5
6
2
9
9

L
e
g
a
c
y
 T

e
rm

it
e
 a

n
d
 P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

3
6
.8

8
 M

o
n
th

ly
 P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

5
6
3
0
0

L
ib

e
rt

y
 T

ra
ile

r 
C

o
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

1
9
.2

6
 

D
-R

in
g
s

5
6
3
0
1

N
o
rt

h
 L

it
tl
e
 R

o
c
k
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

4
6
.0

0
 

2
0
2
3
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

5
6
3
0
2

O
'R

e
ill

y
 A

u
to

m
o
ti
v
e
 S

to
re

s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

8
3
.3

3
 

M
o
to

r 
O

il,
 O

il 
F

ilt
e
rs

/U
n
it
 1

5
5
, 
F

L
 A

C
 C

o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r,

 A
b
s
o
rb

e
n
t,
 T

ra
n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 F

lu
id

, 

D
e
ic

e
r,

 W
in

d
s
h
ie

ld
 D

e
ic

e
r

5
6
3
0
3

O
ff

ic
e
 D

e
p
o
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

0
.9

1
 

C
o
p
y
 P

a
p
e
r

5
6
3
0
4

P
e
te

rs
o
n
 C

o
n
c
re

te
 S

e
p
ti
c
 T

a
n
k

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,2

6
4
.2

0
 

C
o
n
e
, 
R

is
e
r,

 D
o
g
 H

o
u
s
e
 R

is
e
r,

 N
L
R

 R
in

g
 &

 C
o
v
e
r 

- 
W

a
rd

 2

5
6
3
0
5

P
e
tt
u
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

2
8
.3

0
 

T
o
n
e
r 

C
a
rt

ri
d
g
e
s
, 
P

u
re

ll,
 M

o
u
s
e
 P

a
d
, 
D

e
s
k
 P

a
d

5
6
3
0
6

R
a
z
o
rb

a
c
k
 C

o
n
c
re

te
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

9
9
.0

0
 

S
id

e
w

a
lk

 1
7
th

 &
 H

a
z
e
l

5
6
3
0
7

S
a
fe

ty
-K

le
e
n
 S

y
s
te

m
s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

9
9
.4

4
 

5
5
 G

a
l 
D

ru
m

s
 f

o
r 

O
il 

R
a
g
s
, 
N

o
n
h
a
z
a
rd

o
u
s
 W

a
s
te

, 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 F
e
e

5
6
3
0
8

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 P
ip

e
 &

 S
u
p
p
ly

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
1
.1

9
 

V
a
lv

e
 B

o
x
 R

is
e
r 

a
n
d
 L

id

5
6
3
0
9

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 T
ir

e
 M

a
rt

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

1
.8

7
 F

la
t 
R

e
p
a
ir

 B
a
c
k
 H

o
e
, 
T

ir
e
 L

if
e
 S

e
a
la

n
t

5
6
3
1
0

S
ta

n
le

y
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

2
.5

4
 F

le
x
 C

o
u
p
lin

g
, 
E

le
c
tr

ic
 H

e
a
te

r

5
6
3
1
1

T
&

T
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

1
7
.5

5
 

5
5
 G

a
l 
C

a
r 

W
a
s
h
 S

o
a
p

5
6
3
1
2

T
e
s
t 
R

it
e
, 
L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

0
0
.0

0
 T

e
s
t 
R

P
Z

 V
a
lv

e
s
 a

t 
5
-M

i 
T

P

5
6
3
1
3

U
n
it
e
d
 S

ta
te

s
 P

la
s
ti
c
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
2
.4

7
 

L
L
D

P
E

 T
u
b
in

g
, 
C

h
lo

ri
n
e
 T

u
b
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
la

n
ts

5
6
3
1
4

U
B

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,8

0
7
.2

6
 

W
a
te

r 
B

ill
s
: 
 5

-M
i 
T

P
, 
W

O
T

P
, 
F

L
T

P
, 
S

h
ill

c
u
tt
, 
H

e
ilm

a
n
/W

O
, 
O

a
k
b
ro

o
k
, 
L
a
b
, 
M

T
P

, 

M
u
rp

h
y
 D

r

5
6
3
1
5

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 S

o
d
 &

 T
u
rf

 F
a
rm

, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

1
4
.6

5
 

Z
o
y
s
ia

 -
 W

a
rd

 1
 R

e
p
a
ir

5
6
3
1
6

A
lli

e
d
 S

u
p
p
ly

, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

0
.9

6
 

B
a
ll 

V
a
lv

e
, 
T

o
rp

e
d
o
 L

e
v
e
l

5
6
3
1
7

V
O

ID
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 W

ro
n
g
 A

m
o
u
n
t

P
a
g
e
 2



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

5
6
3
1
8

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

t 
G

a
z
e
tt
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

5
4
.3

4
 

L
e
g
a
l 
A

d
 -

 I
n
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 B

id
 -

 W
h
it
e
 O

a
k
 B

a
r 

S
c
re

e
n
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

5
6
3
1
9

B
&

B
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

7
4
.4

3
 

C
o
n
c
re

te
 S

a
n
d
 -

 S
to

c
k

5
6
3
2
0

B
a
tt
e
ry

 O
u
tf

it
te

rs
9
3
.3

2
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

V
a
ri

o
u
s
 b

a
tt
e
ri

e
s
 f

o
r 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 L

o
c
a
to

r

5
6
3
2
1

C
a
rn

e
ll 

S
m

it
h

2
,2

5
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
- 

O
N

 H
O

L
D

5
6
3
2
2

C
in

ta
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
8
.3

4
 

W
in

te
r 

U
n
if
o
rm

 J
a
c
k
e
t 
fo

r 
n
e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

5
6
3
2
3

C
it
y
 o

f 
M

a
u
m

e
lle

  
  
  
  
  
1
3
,6

6
3
.4

5
 

F
ra

n
c
h
is

e
 T

a
x
 C

o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

5
6
3
2
4

C
it
y
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 L

it
tl
e
 R

o
c
k

  
  
  
  
  
8
9
,3

8
6
.5

9
 

F
ra

n
c
h
is

e
 T

a
x
 C

o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

5
6
3
2
5

C
o
re

 &
 M

a
in

, 
L
P

  
  
  
  
  
  
4
,4

9
4
.7

6
 

S
e
w

e
r 

P
ip

e

5
6
3
2
6

D
a
ta

m
a
x

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

0
7
.6

7
 

A
d
m

in
 C

o
p
ie

r/
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 &

 O
v
e
ra

g
e

5
6
3
2
7

E
n
te

rg
y

  
  
  
  
  
1
9
,8

3
1
.6

7
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 B

ill
s
: 
 C

o
lli

n
s
 I
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 M

T
P

 P
S

#
2
&

3
, 
M

u
rp

h
y
 D

r,
 W

O
 B

a
rs

c
re

e
n
, 
M

T
P

 

T
ra

in
in

g
, 
S

o
la

r 
A

rr
a
y
, 
W

O
T

P
, 
W

O
 L

a
g
o
o
n
s

5
6
3
2
8

F
ir

s
t 
E

le
c
tr

ic
 C

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

2
9
.3

7
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 B

ill
: 
 G

a
p
 C

re
e
k

5
6
3
2
9

G
re

e
n
 &

 C
h
a
p
m

a
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,4

2
5
.4

0
 

D
E

F
, 
H

y
d
u
ra

n
c
e
, 
E

P
 C

o
m

p
o
u
n
d

5
6
3
3
0

G
ru

b
b
s
, 
H

o
s
k
y
n
, 
B

a
rt

o
n
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

1
2
.5

0
 

G
e
o
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g

5
6
3
3
1

H
a
lb

e
rt

 P
ip

e
 a

n
d
 S

te
e
l

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

1
.5

3
 

P
ip

e
 M

e
a
s
u
ri

n
g
 D

e
v
ic

e

5
6
3
3
2

H
e
n
a
rd

 F
o
o
th

ill
s
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

6
7
.9

5
 

K
u
b
o
ta

 B
O

C
E

 f
o
r 

M
T

P
 L

o
a
d
e
r

5
6
3
3
3

H
o
rs

e
s
h
o
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
2
2
8
,2

9
1
.0

8
 

E
s
t.
 #

8
 -

 C
u
rt

is
 S

y
k
e
s
/M

e
a
d
o
w

 P
a
rk

 P
ip

e
 B

u
rs

ti
n
g

5
6
3
3
4

H
u
m

's
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

3
8
.9

5
 

C
o
rd

, 
H

e
a
t 
T

a
p
e
, 
P

ip
e
 I
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
Q

u
ic

k
 C

o
u
p
le

rs
, 
E

x
t 
P

o
le

, 
P

lie
rs

, 
E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
T

a
p
e

5
6
3
3
5

H
u
m

's
 R

e
n
ta

l
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

5
1
.1

9
 

C
o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r 

1
8
5
 C

F
M

, 
L
a
b
o
r 

C
h
a
rg

e
s
 A

ir
 C

o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r 

O
il 

L
e
a
k
 -

 F
L
T

P

5
6
3
3
6

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

2
.0

0
 

N
e
w

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 C

h
e
c
k
 -

 P
e
llm

a
n
 

5
6
3
3
7

In
s
tr

u
m

e
n
t 
&

 S
u
p
p
ly

, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

5
4
.1

0
 

H
o
m

a
 P

ro
fi
le

 S
e
a
ls

 f
o
r 

R
iv

e
r 

R
u
n
 &

 D
ia

m
o
n
d
 P

o
in

t

5
6
3
3
8

J
J
 K

e
lle

r 
&

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,0

2
2
.3

4
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

u
b
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
s
/E

m
p
lo

y
m

n
e
t 
L
a
w

, 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 C

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
R

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 

P
o
s
te

rs

5
6
3
3
9

K
e
a
th

le
y
 P

a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 E

le
c
tr

ic
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,5

6
3
.7

5
 

4
 C

h
a
n
n
e
l 
A

n
a
lo

g
 I
n
p
u
ts

, 
4
0
 P

t 
T

e
rm

in
a
l 
B

lo
c
k
s

5
6
3
4
0

L
&

L
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

s
 &

 T
o
o
ls

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

5
7
.0

0
 

2
-W

a
y
 B

a
ll 

V
a
lv

e
s

5
6
3
4
1

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
L
e
a
g
u
e
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 C
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
  
  
  
  
  
5
2
,4

8
0
.0

0
 

W
o
rk

e
rs

 C
o
m

p
 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
2
3

5
6
3
4
2

N
o
rt

h
 L

it
tl
e
 R

o
c
k
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

1
0
 G

u
e
s
t 
T

ic
k
e
ts

 t
o
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

e
e
ti
n
g

5
6
3
4
3

N
o
rt

h
 L

it
tl
e
 R

o
c
k
 E

le
c
tr

ic
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

2
2
.5

5
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 B

ill
: 
 W

ilc
o
x
 P

S

5
6
3
4
4

P
e
tt
u
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

5
9
.3

7
 W

a
tc

h
 B

a
tt
e
ry

, 
P

o
p
u
p
 N

o
te

s
, 
P

o
s
t-

It
s
, 
T

o
n
e
r 

C
a
rt

ri
d
g
e
s
, 
D

u
s
te

r 
K

it
, 
L
a
m

b
s
w

o
o
l 

D
u
s
te

r,
 S

h
re

d
d
e
r,

 S
h
a
rp

ie
s
, 
H

ig
h
lig

h
te

rs
, 
P

e
n
s

5
6
3
4
5

S
u
m

m
it
 U

ti
lit

ie
s
 A

rk
a
n
s
a
s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
7
,5

7
2
.5

3
 

G
a
s
 B

ill
s
; 
 S

e
m

in
o
le

 W
e
s
t,
 S

e
m

in
o
le

 E
a
s
t,
 C

C
 B

F
, 
N

e
w

 B
e
d
fo

rd
, 
M

a
u
m

e
lle

 

V
a
lle

y
, 
O

s
a
g
e
 H

ill
s
, 
N

o
rf

o
lk

, 
7
0
1
 W

. 
2
9
th

, 
F

L
 L

a
b
, 
A

u
s
ti
n
 L

a
k
e
s
, 
G

a
p
 C

k
, 
F

L
T

P
, 

C
la

y
to

n
 C

h
a
p
e
l,
 D

ix
ie

, 
E

u
re

k
a
 G

rd
n

5
6
3
4
6

T
&

T
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

7
3
.7

5
 

B
a
ll 

V
a
lv

e
, 
B

ru
s
h
e
s
 f

o
r 

C
a
r 

W
a
s
h

5
6
3
4
7

U
n
it
e
d
 H

o
is

t 
&

 C
ra

n
e
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,0

4
5
.2

2
 

R
e
p
a
ir

s
 a

ft
e
r 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 T

ra
n
s
m

it
te

r,
 L

a
b
o
r,

 F
re

ig
h
t

5
6
3
4
8

U
S

A
 B

lu
e
b
o
o
k

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

4
2
.2

6
 

M
ic

ro
s
c
o
p
e
 C

o
v
e
r,

 C
o
v
e
r 

S
lip

s
 f

o
r 

s
lid

e
s
, 
E

le
c
tr

o
d
e
 S

to
ra

g
e
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
, 
M

ic
ro

s
c
o
p
e
 

S
lid

e
s
, 
D

u
s
t 
M

o
p
 T

re
a
tm

e
n
t,
 E

le
c
tr

o
d
e
 c

le
a
n
e
r,

 p
H

 B
u
ff

e
r

P
a
g
e
 3



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

5
6
3
4
9

W
a
d
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,4

2
3
.2

4
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
L
a
b
 H

V
A

C
 -

 8
/1

/2
2
 -

 1
/3

1
/2

3

5
6
3
5
0

W
a
lk

e
rs

 R
a
d
ia

to
r 

&
 A

u
to

 R
e
p
a
ir

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

3
8
.2

5
 

U
n
it
 1

1
6
 -

 F
ro

n
t 
&

 R
e
a
r 

B
ra

k
e
 J

o
b

5
6
3
5
1

V
O

ID
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 V

O
ID

 -
 P

ri
n
t 
E

rr
o
r

5
6
3
5
2

V
O

ID
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 V

O
ID

 -
 P

ri
n
t 
E

rr
o
r

5
6
3
5
3

O
C

S
E

 C
le

a
ri

n
g
h
o
u
s
e
 S

D
U

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

7
8
.0

6
 

C
h
ild

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 7

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 -

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

5
6
3
5
4

N
L
R

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
te

r
5
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 W
e
lln

e
s
s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 2
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

5
6
3
5
5

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 U

n
it
e
d
 W

a
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
.0

0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 C

h
a
ri

ta
b
le

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

N
A

T
-0

2
N

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,2

1
1
.4

6
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

P
R

-0
2

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
 D

e
p
o
s
it

  
  
  
  
  
4
5
,5

9
5
.4

2
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
e
s
 P

a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

5
6
3
5
6

A
-1

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

7
3
.7

5
 

U
n
it
 1

4
2
 T

o
w

e
d
 t
o
 P

o
w

e
rs

 T
ru

c
k

5
6
3
5
7

A
F

L
A

C
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,7

5
9
.9

4
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

5
6
3
5
8

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 M

a
ili

n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

5
.9

2
 I

n
s
e
rt

in
g
 'M

a
in

ta
in

 Y
o
u
r 

D
ra

in
' E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

a
ile

rs

5
6
3
5
9

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 O

n
e
-C

a
ll 

S
y
s
te

m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

4
4
.9

0
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

F
e
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
2
3
 -

 C
a
ll 

F
e
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
2
2

5
6
3
6
0

A
T

&
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
6
.5

6
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 S

h
a
re

d
 F

ib
e
r 

- 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
2
3

5
6
3
6
1

B
a
tt
e
ry

 O
u
tf

it
te

rs
1
1
.2

8
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

B
a
tt
e
ri

e
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
to

r

5
6
3
6
2

C
A

H
R

A
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

7
5
.0

0
 

2
0
2
3
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 D
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 m

o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 l
u
n
c
h
 -

 T
 M

a
rs

h
a
ll

5
6
3
6
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 C

e
n
te

r 
fo

r 
H

e
a
lt
h

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,3

1
4
.0

0
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
lln

e
s
s
 C

lin
ic

 -
 F

e
b
 2

0
2
3

5
6
3
6
4

C
o
lo

n
ia

l 
L
if
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

3
2
.5

2
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

5
6
3
6
5

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
W

o
rx

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

0
8
.4

3
 

A
d
a
p
te

r 
S

te
m

s
 f

o
r 

M
T

P
 C

h
lo

ri
n
a
to

rs

5
6
3
6
6

C
o
n
w

a
y
 F

e
n
c
e
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
1
5
,7

3
0
.0

0
 

P
ri

v
a
c
y
 F

e
n
c
e
s
 w

/S
te

e
l 
P

o
s
ts

- 
D

u
ra

n
g
o
, 
M

a
u
m

e
lle

 V
a
lle

y
, 
N

a
y
lo

r,
 N

e
w

 B
e
d
fo

rd

5
6
3
6
7

C
o
re

 &
 M

a
in

, 
L
P

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,8

0
9
.8

2
 

c
o
u
p
lin

g
s
, 
P

V
C

 P
ip

e

5
6
3
6
8

D
a
ta

m
a
x

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
8
.8

7
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 &

 O
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

 E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 C

o
p
ie

r

5
6
3
6
9

D
is

c
o
u
n
t 
C

e
ll

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,5

1
7
.9

5
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 

7
3
 N

e
t 
C

lo
u
d
 L

ic
e
n
s
e
s
 C

ra
d
le

p
o
in

t 
R

o
u
te

r 
1
/7

/2
3
 -

 1
/6

/2
0
2
4

5
6
3
7
0

E
n
te

rg
y

  
  
  
  
  
2
4
,7

3
8
.7

1
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 B

ill
s
: 
 5

-M
i 
IN

F
L
, 
5
-M

i 
#
1
, 
5
-M

i 
S

o
u
th

5
6
3
7
1

E
u
re

k
a
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,7

7
5
.0

0
 D

e
b
t 
F

e
e
 B

ill
e
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
2
2

5
6
3
7
2

E
x
p
re

s
s
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e
, 
L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

6
.1

3
 

U
n
it
 1

5
3
 -

 O
il 

&
 F

ilt
e
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

5
6
3
7
3

F
u
e
lm

a
n

  
  
  
  
  
1
5
,4

4
9
.1

8
 U

ti
lit

y
 V

e
h
ic

le
s
 G

a
s
 &

 D
ie

s
e
l 
- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
2
2

5
6
3
7
4

G
a
ry

 C
a
rp

e
n
te

r 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
4
2
,1

8
5
.0

0
 

R
iv

e
rb

a
n
k
 S

ta
b
ili

z
a
ti
o
n
 -

 F
a
u
lk

n
e
r 

L
a
k
e
 O

u
tf

a
ll 

L
in

e

5
6
3
7
5

G
o
o
d
s
e
ll 

T
ru

c
k
 A

c
c
e
s
s
o
ri

e
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

7
6
.3

4
 

U
n
it
 1

3
8
 -

 S
te

p
 B

a
r

5
6
3
7
6

G
ra

n
it
e
 M

o
u
n
ta

in
 Q

u
a
rr

ie
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,2

5
1
.0

9
 

S
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 G

ra
v
e
l/
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
1
 &

 2
9

5
6
3
7
7

G
ra

v
e
l 
R

id
g
e
 S

e
w

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
  
  
  
  
  
6
1
,2

3
2
.3

2
 

B
ill

e
d
 G

ra
v
e
l 
R

id
g
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
2
2

5
6
3
7
8

G
re

e
n
 &

 C
h
a
p
m

a
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

7
7
.3

8
 D

ie
s
e
l 
E

x
h
a
u
s
t 
F

lu
id

5
6
3
7
9

In
te

rs
ta

te
 A

ll 
B

a
tt
e
ry

 C
e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

1
.9

4
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
B

a
tt
e
ry

 f
o
r 

F
L
 J

u
m

p
e
r 

B
o
x

5
6
3
8
0

L
&

L
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

s
 &

 T
o
o
ls

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,5

1
1
.1

0
 L

e
a
th

e
r 

G
lo

v
e
s
, 
R

e
lie

f 
T

-H
a
n
d
le

 V
a
lv

e
s

5
6
3
8
1

L
e
g
a
l 
S

h
ie

ld
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

4
6
.3

5
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

re
p
a
id

 L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
6
3
8
2

V
 O

 I
 D

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 V

 O
 I
 D

P
a
g
e
 4



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

5
6
3
8
3

N
o
rt

h
 L

it
tl
e
 R

o
c
k
 E

le
c
tr

ic
  
  
  
  
  
4
2
,7

4
6
.2

1
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 B

ill
s
: 
 2

8
 N

L
R

W
 U

ti
lit

y
 M

e
te

rs
 o

n
 N

L
R

 E
le

c
tr

ic
 S

y
s
te

m

5
6
3
8
4

O
ff

ic
e
 D

e
p
o
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
1
.5

5
 

P
e
n
s
, 
V

e
lc

ro
 S

tr
ip

s
, 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

h
a
ir

5
6
3
8
5

O
n
e
 S

to
p
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

4
3
.8

1
 

R
e
p
a
ir

 P
L
C

 &
 I
D

E
C

 -
 S

C
A

D
A

5
6
3
8
6

P
e
tt
u
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

5
9
.5

6
 

B
a
tt
e
ri

e
s
, 
L
a
b
e
l 
T

a
p
e
, 
C

le
a
r 

T
a
p
e
, 
C

o
c
o
a
, 
D

e
s
k
p
a
d
, 
L
e
tt
e
r 

H
a
n
g
in

g
 F

ile
s
, 
C

o
ff

e
e

5
6
3
8
7

R
P

 P
o
w

e
r,

 L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

2
2
.5

0
 

T
ra

v
e
l,
 D

ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
s
, 
R

e
p
a
ir

 -
 G

e
n
e
ra

to
r 

5
-M

ile
 T

P

5
6
3
8
8

S
c
o
tt
 A

u
to

m
o
ti
v
e
 C

e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

7
.1

0
 

U
n
it
 1

4
6
 -

 C
h
e
c
k
 B

ra
k
e
s

5
6
3
8
9

S
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 
E

A
P

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

5
0
.0

0
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 B

ill
in

g
 -

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

5
6
3
9
0

S
p
a
 C

h
e
m

ic
a
ls

, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

9
5
.6

2
 

D
e
-I

c
e
r 

S
p
ra

y

5
6
3
9
1

V
e
ri

z
o
n
 W

ir
e
le

s
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,4

7
5
.1

7
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 B

ill
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 C

e
ll 

P
h
o
n
e
s
 &

 i
P

a
d
s

5
6
3
9
2

W
a
s
h
in

g
to

n
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 C

o
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,4

4
9
.0

1
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

5
6
3
9
3

W
e
ls

c
o

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

8
.2

5
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 R

e
n
ta

l 
W

e
ld

in
g
 G

a
s
 C

y
lin

d
e
rs

5
6
3
9
4

W
h
o
le

s
a
le

 E
le

c
tr

ic
 S

u
p
p
ly

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

.2
8
 

1
 B

o
x
 3

/4
 H

u
b
s
 f

o
r 

F
ilt

e
r 

P
re

s
s

5
6
3
9
5

R
G

A
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

1
0
.8

0
 C

o
u
p
le

rs
 -

 M
T

P

E
L

E
C

P
Y

M
T

-1
C

e
n
te

n
n
ia

l 
B

a
n
k
 C

re
d
it
 C

a
rd

  
  
  
  
  
  
4
,0

5
6
.3

5
 

Z
o
o
m

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
In

d
e
e
d
 J

o
b
 A

d
s
, 
S

a
m

's
 C

lu
b
 I
te

m
s
, 
A

m
a
z
o
n
 I
te

m
s
, 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 L

u
n
c
h
e
s
, 
B

o
o
k
s
 f

o
r 

O
p
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
F

lo
ra

ls
 f

o
r 

N
e
w

 

B
a
b
ie

s
 -

 A
ll 

it
e
m

iz
e
d
 o

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t

5
6
3
9
6

A
-1

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
2
.5

3
 

U
n
it
 1

0
9
 T

o
w

 t
o
 P

o
w

e
rs

5
6
3
9
7

D
E

Q
-W

W
L

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
0
.0

0
 

C
L
A

S
S

 1
 O

p
e
ra

to
r 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 F

e
e
s
 -

 3
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s

5
6
3
9
8

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 F

lu
id

 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 9

0
.0

0
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
In

s
u
la

ti
n
g
 C

o
m

p
o
u
n
d

5
6
3
9
9

A
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

8
0
.7

3
 

M
T

P
 -

 S
e
rv

ic
e
d
 I
c
e
 m

a
c
h
in

e

5
6
4
0
0

A
m

e
ri

c
a
n
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

0
5
.5

5
 

D
ry

in
g
 B

e
d
 S

a
n
d

5
6
4
0
1

A
R

 D
e
p
t.
 o

f 
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

M
o
b
ile

 A
ir

 C
o
m

p
re

s
s
o
r 

- 
F

L
T

P

5
6
4
0
2

A
T

&
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
2
.0

5
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 D

e
n
ia

l 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

S
e
c
u
ri

ty
)

5
6
4
0
3

A
T

&
T

 M
o
b
ili

ty
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,2

1
3
.8

5
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 M

o
b
ile

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

S
C

A
D

A

5
6
4
0
4

B
u
rk

h
a
lt
e
r 

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
3
1
,2

8
9
.9

4
 

E
s
t.
 #

8
 D

ix
ie

 &
 B

a
ri

n
g
 C

ro
s
s
 P

B
; 
E

s
t 
#
1
5
 R

o
s
e
 C

it
y
 &

 M
ili

ta
ry

5
6
4
0
5

C
in

ta
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,7

0
6
.7

1
 

M
a
t 
&

 U
n
if
o
rm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
U

lt
ra

c
le

a
n
 R

e
s
t 
R

o
o
m

 S
v
c
, 
W

in
te

r 
J
a
c
k
e
ts

 w
/L

o
g
o

5
6
4
0
6

C
in

ta
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

8
7
.9

3
 

M
e
d
ic

in
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
fi
lls

: 
L
a
b
, 
P

u
m

p
 M

a
in

t,
 O

p
s
, 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

5
6
4
0
7

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
W

o
rx

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

0
8
.3

9
 

P
ip

e
 N

ip
p
le

 A
s
s
e
m

b
ly

5
6
4
0
8

C
o
re

 &
 M

a
in

, 
L
P

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,7

7
4
.3

6
 

1
2
" 

M
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
P

lu
g
, 
P

V
C

 C
P

L
G

5
6
4
0
9

D
a
ta

m
a
x

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
8
.3

6
 

C
o
p
ie

rs
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 &

 O
v
e
ra

g
e
/L

a
b
 &

 C
o
ll 

S
y
s

5
6
4
1
0

D
o
o
rk

in
g
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
.9

5
 

F
L
T

P
 G

a
te

 1
 C

e
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
n
th

ly

5
6
4
1
1

E
x
p
re

s
s
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e
, 
L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
8
.9

5
 

U
n
it
 1

4
6
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e
, 
V

e
h
ic

le
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
; 
U

n
it
 1

3
7
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e

5
6
4
1
2

E
Z

A
u
to

m
a
ti
o
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

7
7
.0

0
 

In
p
u
t 
M

o
d
u
le

s
, 
A

n
a
lo

g
 O

u
tp

u
ts

 -
 S

C
A

D
A

 s
p
a
re

 p
a
rt

s

5
6
4
1
3

F
e
d
E

x
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
7
.6

9
 

S
h
ip

p
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 C

h
lo

ri
n
e
 P

u
m

p
 E

x
c
h
a
n
g
e

5
6
4
1
4

G
re

e
n
 &

 C
h
a
p
m

a
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,4

5
2
.1

7
 

O
ff

 R
o
a
d
 D

ie
s
e
l 
fo

r 
G

e
n
e
ra

to
rs

5
6
4
1
5

H
a
y
n
e
s
 P

u
m

p
 &

 P
ro

c
e
s
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

2
0
.5

7
 

H
o
s
e
 N

o
z
z
le

s
 -

 M
T

P
 C

h
lo

ri
n
e

P
a
g
e
 5



C
K

C
H

E
C

K
 

#
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

 T
O

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

 C
A

S
H

 D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
2
3

5
6
4
1
6

H
ilb

u
rn

 &
 H

a
rp

e
r,

 L
T

D
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,2

9
7
.5

0
 

L
e
g
a
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

- 
R

e
ta

in
e
r,

 S
p
e
c
ia

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

, 
U

P
 P

e
rm

it
 A

p
p
e
a
l

5
6
4
1
7

ID
E

X
X

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,9

3
2
.6

4
 

3
 M

o
n
th

s
 s

u
p
p
ly

 f
e
c
a
l 
te

s
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s

5
6
4
1
8

J
o
e
's

 G
a
ra

g
e
 &

 W
re

c
k
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,4

6
1
.3

6
 

U
n
it
 1

1
9
 -

 R
e
p
a
ir

 F
u
e
l 
P

u
m

p

5
6
4
1
9

L
o
w

e
's

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6

4
1
.0

4
 

S
u
p
p
lie

s
 f

o
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

h
e
lv

e
s
 i
n
 P

u
m

p
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

5
6
4
2
0

V
 O

 I
 D

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 -

  
 V

 O
 I
 D

5
6
4
2
1

M
H

B
P

 P
re

m
iu

m
s

  
  
  
  
  
8
4
,5

8
2
.8

4
 

G
ro

u
p
 H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

5
6
4
2
2

M
y
F

le
e
tC

e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

6
3
.0

5
 

U
n
it
 1

2
4
 -

  
S

ig
n
a
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e

5
6
4
2
3

O
'R

e
ill

y
 A

u
to

m
o
ti
v
e
 S

to
re

s
, 
In

c
.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
4
.6

8
 

W
ip

e
r 

B
la

d
e
s
, 
2
-c

y
c
le

 O
il,

 D
o
o
r 

H
a
n
d
le

5
6
4
2
4

P
e
tt
u
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

4
5
.6

1
 

P
ri

n
t 
T

o
n
e
rs

, 
P

a
p
e
rc

lip
s
, 
N

o
te

b
o
o
k
s
, 
P

o
s
t-

It
 F

la
g
s
, 
S

e
c
u
ri

ty
 E

n
v
e
lo

p
e
s
, 
B

a
tt
e
ri

e
s

5
6
4
2
5

P
o
w

e
rs

 T
ru

c
k
 &

 E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,9

1
1
.1

2
 

U
n
it
 1

4
2
 L

a
b
o
r 

&
 p

a
rt

s
; 
U

n
it
 1

4
4
 P

a
rk

e
r 

F
it
ti
n
g
s
, 
H

o
s
e

5
6
4
2
6

R
a
z
o
rb

a
c
k
 C

o
n
c
re

te
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

3
9
.1

3
 

C
o
n
c
re

te
 F

o
r 

R
e
p
a
ir

s
 W

a
rd

s
 1

 &
 2

5
6
4
2
7

R
G

A
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

7
6
.0

3
 

L
a
y
 F

la
t 
H

o
s
e
 A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 f
o
r 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

u
m

p

5
6
4
2
8

R
P

 P
o
w

e
r,

 L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
5
,7

2
6
.4

3
 

S
h
ill

c
u
tt
 G

e
n
e
ra

to
r 

R
e
p
a
ir

, 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
M

a
u
m

e
lle

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o
o
l

5
6
4
2
9

T
&

T
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

3
6
.8

8
 

O
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 H

o
s
e
 R

e
p
a
ir

 -
 C

a
r 

W
a
s
h

5
6
4
3
0

U
S

A
 B

lu
e
b
o
o
k

  
  
  
  
  
  
2
,2

1
8
.0

2
 

B
a
tt
e
ri

e
s
, 
M

y
la

r 
B

a
g
s
, 
C

O
D

 T
e
s
ti
n
g
 V

ia
ls

5
6
4
3
1

U
B

S
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

2
0
.6

1
 

W
a
te

r 
B

ill
s
: 
 5

-M
i 
T

P
, 
D

e
lt
a
 L

a
w

n
, 
S

e
m

i 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

5
6
4
3
2

V
e
ri

z
o
n
 C

o
n
n
e
c
t 
F

le
e
t 
U

S
A

 L
L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8

0
2
.4

4
 

V
e
h
ic

le
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

5
6
4
3
3

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,6

6
9
.4

7
 

D
u
m

p
s
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
/5

-M
i,
 F

L
T

P
, 
S

h
ill

c
u
tt
, 
V

a
c
C

o
n
s
, 
W

O
T

P
, 
M

T
P

5
6
4
3
4

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

ill
in

g
 L

L
C

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 2

5
9
.4

9
 

U
n
it
 1

0
2
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 O

il 
C

h
a
n
g
e
, 
U

n
it
 1

4
5
 C

o
v
e
r

5
6
4
3
5

O
C

S
E

 C
le

a
ri

n
g
h
o
u
s
e
 S

D
U

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
,1

7
8
.0

6
 

C
h
ild

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 7

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 -

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

5
6
4
3
6

N
L
R

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
te

r
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5

.0
0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 W
e
lln

e
s
s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 2
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

5
6
4
3
7

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

A
rk

a
n
s
a
s
 U

n
it
e
d
 W

a
y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
.0

0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 C

h
a
ri

ta
b
le

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

N
A

T
-0

3
N

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
3
,1

9
6
.4

6
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 P

a
id

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

P
R

-0
3

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
 D

e
p
o
s
it

  
  
  
  
  
4
4
,9

7
8
.0

1
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
T

a
x
e
s
 P

a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
S

H
  
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
1
,0

2
8
,0

2
8
.3

3
  
  
 

P
a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
  
1
/1

/2
0
2
3

1
4
2
,2

4
0
.1

2
  
  
  
  

P
a
id

 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

n
 1

/3
/2

0
2
3

P
a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
 1

/1
5
/2

0
2
3

1
4
6
,2

5
7
.5

1
  
  
  
  

P
a
id

 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

n
 1

/1
7
/2

0
2
3

P
a
y
 P

e
ri

o
d
 E

n
d
in

g
 1

/2
9
/2

0
2
3

1
4
4
,6

1
8
.6

6
  
  
  
  

P
a
id

 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

n
 1

/3
1
/2

0
2
3

A
D

F
A

 D
ra

w
s

3
2
6
,7

3
4
.4

1
  
  
  
  

M
o
n
th

ly
 L

o
a
n
 D

ra
w

s

P
u
la

s
k
i 
C

o
u
n
ty

 C
le

rk
3
5
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
R

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 F

e
e
-M

a
u
m

e
lle

 P
ro

je
c
t-

P
a
rc

e
l 
#
2
3

C
le

a
re

n
t

2
8
.4

5
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

re
d
it
 C

a
rd

 A
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 F

e
e

T
O

T
A

L
 A

L
L

 F
U

N
D

S
 C

A
S

H
 D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
1
,7

8
7
,9

4
2
.4

8
  
  
 

P
a
g
e
 6



D
A

T
E

A
M

O
U

N
T

T
O

F
R

O
M

1
/6

/2
0
2
3

1
0
7
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
C

h
e
c
k
s
 P

a
id

 1
/2

-1
/6

1
/1

1
/2

0
2
2

4
3
4
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
C

h
e
c
k
s
 P

a
id

 1
/1

1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2
2

1
4
6
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
-P

a
yr

o
ll

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
P

a
y
 P

e
ri
o
d
 E

n
d
e
d
 1

/1
5
, 
P

a
id

 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
s
 o

n
 1

/1
7

1
/2

0
/2

0
2
3

2
8
3
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
C

h
e
c
k
s
 P

a
id

 1
/1

7
-1

/2
0

1
/2

5
/2

0
2
3

1
5
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
C

h
e
c
k
s
 P

a
id

 1
/2

5

1
/3

0
/2

0
2
3

1
4
4
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
-P

a
yr

o
ll

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
P

a
y
 P

e
ri
o
d
 E

n
d
e
d
 1

/2
9
, 
P

a
id

 t
o
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
s
 o

n
 1

/3
1

1
/3

1
/2

0
2
3

4
9
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  

 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

S
e
w

e
r

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fo

r 
C

h
e
c
k
s
 P

a
id

 1
/3

1

1
,3

1
8
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  

N
O

R
T

H
 L

IT
T

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

F
U

N
D

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 3
1

, 
2

0
2

3

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

P
a
g
e
 1



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
        

 
 
 
 
 

(4) 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED 
 
 

Approve the Financial Statements for January 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 

(5) 
 
 

ACQUISITION OF 7.7 ACRES ADJACENT TO THE EAST OF FAULKNER LAKE WRF 

The Wastewater Commission has the chance to expand its operations by acquiring an adjacent 7.7-

acre tract of land near the Faulkner Lake WRF. The property, located near Arkansas State Highway 

165, is zoned "I-2" and is well suited for expanding wastewater operations. The acquisition of this land 

will provide several advantages to our operations, such as increased efficiency and a buffer zone 

between private property and the Water Reclamation Facilities. 

After negotiating with the Seller of the property, Norman Clifton, for a purchase price of $650,000, 

NLRW used the services of an Arkansas Certified General Appraiser which provide an appraisal of the 

property at $700,000.  

The existing wastewater treatment plant is facing the challenge of meeting the growing demand for its 

services and the Utility has future plans for the consolidation of the Five Mile Creek WRF, treatment of 

nutrients, PFAS, and biosolids. The acquisition of this land will provide us with the necessary space to 

expand our facilities and increase our processing capabilities, ultimately enhancing our overall 

efficiency. 

The location of this land is ideal for our operations, as it is situated next to our existing facilities, reducing 

the cost and complexity of any required infrastructure improvements. The proximity to our existing 

facilities also reduces transportation costs and provides us with easy access to essential utilities, such 

as water, electricity, and natural gas. 

One concern we have regarding the land is the potential development of a commercial or industrial 

property in an ALOHA Threat Zone, where NLRW does not have evacuation authority in case of a 

chlorine leak. Chlorine is the primary component used for disinfecting treated wastewater, and it is 

crucial to take all necessary precautions to ensure public safety. 

Furthermore, the land is located in an area designated for industrial use and future development, 

providing us with greater certainty in terms of future land use and reducing the risk of any potential 

zoning changes that may impact our operations. 

In conclusion, the acquisition of this land is a strategic investment that will bring several benefits to our 

operations. With the growing demand for our services and the need to expand our facilities, this is an 

opportunity that the Wastewater Commission should take advantage of. 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Authorize the Director to enter into an offer and acceptance contract and proceed with the acquisition 

of the 7.7 acres of the property East and adjacent to the existing Faulkner Lake WRF grounds for 

$650,000. 

 



Arkansas Appraisal Associates (501) 223-2010

Arkansas Appraisal Associates

1309 Broadway St.

Little Rock, AR 72202

501-223-2010 501-228-9985

Norman Clifton

1000 Cherry Hill Rd

North Little Rock, AR 72117

LS0123008

01/26/2023

LS0123008

71-0848705

Norman Clifton Norman Clifton

Highway 165

North Little Rock

AR 72117

Appraisal fee 1,700.00

1,700.00

0

1,700.00

Form NIV5D - "TOTAL" appraisal software by a la mode, inc. - 1-800-ALAMODE

FROM:

Telephone Number: Fax Number:

TO:

E-Mail:

Telephone Number: Fax Number:

Alternate Number:

INVOICE

INVOICE NUMBER

DATES

Invoice Date:

Due Date:

REFERENCE

Internal Order #:

Lender Case #:

Client File #:

FHA/VA Case #:

Main File # on form:

Other File # on form:

Federal Tax ID:

Employer ID:

DESCRIPTION

Lender: Client:

Purchaser/Borrower:

Property Address:

City:

County: State: Zip:

Legal Description:

FEES AMOUNT

SUBTOTAL

PAYMENTS AMOUNT

Check #: Date: Description:

Date:Check #: Description:

Check #: Date: Description:

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL DUE $



 

 

This Document is designed to meet the Report Requirements 
Of Standards Rule 2-2(a) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice Guidelines 

For a Real Estate Appraisal 
 
 

Appraisal Report 
 

Vacant Land 
Highway 165 

North Little Rock, Arkansas 
 

 
As of 

 
January 25, 2023 

 
 

Prepared For 
 

Clifton Family, LLLP 
1000 Cherry Hill Road 

North Little Rock, Arkansas 
 
 

 
Prepared By 

 
Dwight Pattison, and Luke Sanders 

 
 
 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates, 

 1309 South Broadway, 

 Little Rock, Arkansas 

 



 

 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates 
 
 

 1309 South Broadway, Little Rock, Arkansas 72202 

Office (501) 223-2010                                        Fax (501) 228-9985 

 

 

Dwight Pattison John Duce 

Brett Sullivan Braden Chadick 

Mike Cantrell Luke Sanders 

Stephanie Barrick  

 
January 26, 2023 
 
Clifton Family, LLLP 
1000 Cherry Hill Road 
North Little Rock, Arkansas 
Attn: Norman Clifton 
 

Re: Vacant Land 
   Highway 165 

North Little Rock, Arkansas 
 
Dear Mr. Clifton, 
 
In accordance with your request I have inspected and appraised the above referenced property for estimating its market value. The 
property was inspected and photographed on January 25, 2023.  The following report contains data gathered during my investigation 
and shows the method of this appraisal in detail.  Your attention is directed to the "Limiting and Contingent Conditions" and the 
"Certification of the Appraisers" sections, and to my remarks contained in the "Reconciliation" section of this report.  
 
This appraisal report is designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice and Title 
XI of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1987 for an Appraisal Report.  If a more detailed report 
is desired, one may be prepared upon your authorization for an additional fee. 
 
My opinion of the market value of the unencumbered fee simple estate of the subject property as of January 25, 2023 is: 
 
 SEVEN HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
 
 $700,000 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 Dwight Pattison      Luke Sanders 
 State Certified General Appraiser State Registered Appraiser 
 License #CG0200 License #SR3640 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 3 
 

Table of Contents 
SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT DATA AND CONCLUSIONS ................................................... 4 

PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY ..................................................................... 5 

IDENTIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY .................................................................................... 6 

SUBJECT PROPERTY .............................................................................................................. 6 

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL ................................................................................................. 6 

INTENDED USE AND INTENDED USERS OF THE APPRAISAL .......................................... 7 

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED .............................................................................................. 8 

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS ................................................................................................. 8 

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS ......................................................................................... 8 

TERMINOLOGY DEFINED ......................................................................................................... 9 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUE OPINION .................................................................................. 9 

ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS ................................................................................................ 10 

ZONING ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

TAX DATA AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS........................................................................... 10 

FLOOD ZONE STATUS ............................................................................................................. 11 

OWNER OF RECORD................................................................................................................. 13 

HISTORY OF PROPERTY CONVEYANCES ........................................................................... 13 

MARKET CONDITIONS ............................................................................................................ 13 

DEFINITION OF APPRAISAL ................................................................................................... 14 

SCOPE OF WORK ....................................................................................................................... 14 

INSPECTION OF SUBJECT ....................................................................................................... 16 

DEFINITION OF VALUE ........................................................................................................... 17 

REGIONAL/CITY DATA............................................................................................................ 18 

NEIGHBORHOOD DATA .......................................................................................................... 27 

SITE DATA .................................................................................................................................. 28 

DEFINITION OF HIGHEST AND BEST USE ........................................................................... 29 

ANALYSIS OF HIGHEST AND BEST USE.......................................................................... 30 

THE APPRAISAL PROCESS ...................................................................................................... 31 

LAND VALUE BY THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH ............................................... 32 

ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSIONS ........................................................................................ 36 

Comparable Locations Map .......................................................................................................... 37 

RECONCILIATION AND FINAL VALUE OPINION .............................................................. 38 

CERTIFICATION OF THE APPRAISERS ................................................................................. 39 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 4 
 

 

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT DATA AND CONCLUSIONS 
 
LOCATION:     Highway 165 

North Little Rock, Arkansas 
 
 
LAND AREA:     The subject property consists of a large acreage tract that 

contains approximately 7.7 acres according to the legal 
description provided. 

 
 
IMPROVEMENTS:    The subject site is currently vacant. 
 
 
HIGHEST AND BEST USE:   Industrial use. 
 
 
VALUE OPINION BY 
COST APPROACH:    N/A 
 
 
VALUE OPINION BY 
SALES COMPARISON APPROACH:  $700,000 
 
 
VALUE OPINION BY 
INCOME APPROACH:   N/A 
 
 
FINAL VALUE OPINION:    $700,000 
 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF APPRAISAL:  January 25, 2023 
 
 
REPORT DATE:    January 26, 2023 
 
 
APPRAISER:     Dwight Pattison and Luke Sanders 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 5 
 

PHOTOGRAPHS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

  

  

 

 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 6 
 

IDENTIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY 
 
The subject property is located at Highway 165, North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas.  According 
to public records the property is legally described as:  
 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 7 
 

PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL 
The purpose of this appraisal report is to provide the lender/client with a credible opinion of the market 
value of the subject property as of the effective date of my appraisal and governed by the statement of 
limiting conditions and appraiser's certification.  See "Definition of Value" in this report.  The last 
observation of the site was on January 25, 2023. 

INTENDED USE AND INTENDED USERS OF THE APPRAISAL 
The intended use of this reported appraisal is the use(s) as identified by the appraiser based on 
communication with the client Clifton Family, LLLP, 1000 Cherry Hill Road of North Little Rock, 
Arkansas, at the time of the assignment. The intended use of the appraisal report is to provide information 
for use in assisting the intended user(s) with the market value of the subject property. The scope of work in 
this appraisal is customized for the intended use. This appraisal and report is inappropriate for any other 
uses. Regardless of the means of possession of this report, this appraisal may not be used or relied on for 
any use except the stated use. The appraiser, appraiser's firm, and related parties assume no obligation, 
liability, or accountability for any other use. 
 
The intended user is the client Clifton Family, LLLP, 1000 Cherry Hill Road of North Little Rock, 
Arkansas, and any other party as identified, by name or type, as users of the appraisal by the appraiser based 
on communication with the client at the time of the assignment. The intended user(s) of this appraisal report 
is the client Clifton Family, LLLP 1000 Cherry Hill Road, North Little Rock, Arkansas. This report is 
written for a specific scope of work, intended use, and intended user(s) identified herein.  No additional 
intended users are identified by the appraiser. This appraisal and report is inappropriate for other users. 
Regardless of the means of possession of this report, this appraisal may not be used or relied on by anyone 
other than the herein stated intended user(s). The appraiser, appraiser's firm, and related parties assume no 
obligation, liability, or accountability for any third party. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 8 
 

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED 
The opinion of value expressed in this report is based upon an opinion of the market value of the fee simple 
estate of the subject property described herein.  No opinion is rendered as to the quality of title and the 
property is appraised as though free and clear of liens and encumbrances and under competent and 
responsible ownership and management.   
 
No opinion is expressed as to the value of subsurface oil, gas, or other mineral rights.  The property is not 
known to be subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such materials except as is expressly 
stated. 
 
This opinion of value does not include the value of any inventory, furnishings, machinery, equipment, or 
other items deemed by the appraiser to be the personal property of the owner or specified by any lease or 
other document to be the property of those other than the holder of the fee simple estate to the subject 
property. 

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS 
There are no hypothetical conditions. USPAP defines hypothetical condition as: That which is contrary to 
what exists but is supposed for the purpose of analysis.  
 
Comment: Hypothetical conditions assume conditions contrary to known facts about physical, legal, or 
economic characteristics of the subject property; or about conditions external to the property, such as market 
conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in an analysis.  A hypothetical condition may be 
used in an assignment only if: 1. Use of the hypothetical condition is clearly required for legal purposes, 
for purposes of reasonable analysis, or for purposes of comparison; 2. Use of the hypothetical condition 
results in a credible analysis; and 3. the appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in 
USPAP for hypothetical conditions. 

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS 
There are no extraordinary assumptions.  USPAP defines extraordinary assumption as: An assignment-
specific assumption as of the effective date regarding uncertain information used in an analysis, which, if 
found to be false, could alter the appraiser's opinions or conclusions.  
 
Comment: Uncertain information might include physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the subject 
property; or conditions external to the property such as market conditions or trends; or the integrity of data 
used in an analysis. An extraordinary assumption may be used in an assignment only if: 1. it is required to 
properly develop credible opinions and conclusions; 2. the appraiser has a reasonable basis for the 
extraordinary assumption; 3. Use of the extraordinary assumption results in a credible analysis; and 4. the 
appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in USPAP for extraordinary assumptions. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 9 
 

TERMINOLOGY DEFINED 
The following terms may apply in estimating the value of the property.  The following definitions have 
been taken from The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 4th Addition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, IL. 
 
LEASED FEE INTEREST  The property held in fee with the right of use and occupancy 

conveyed by lease to others.  A property consisting of the right to 
receive ground rentals over a period of time, plus the right of 
ultimate repossession at the termination of the lease. 

 
LEASEHOLD INTEREST  The interest held by the lessee (the tenant or renter) through a lease 

transferring the rights of use and occupancy for a stated term under 
certain conditions. See also negative leasehold; positive leasehold. 

 
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS Improvement or additions to leased property that has been made 

by the lessee. 
 
USE VALUE    The value of a property designed to fit the specific requirements 

of the owner, but which would have little or no use to another 
owner.  A property for which the market would be almost 
nonexistent.  Also, referred to as value in use.   

 
VALUE IN USE   The value a specific property has to a specific person or specific 

firm as opposed to the value to persons or the market in general. 
Special-purpose properties such as churches, schools, and public 
buildings, which are seldom bought and sold in the open market, 
can be valued on the basis of value in use. The value in use to a 
specific person may include a sentimental value component. The 
value in use to a specific firm may be the value of the plant as part 
of an integrated multi-plant operation.  

 
FEE SIMPLE     Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, 

subject only to the limitations imposed by the governmental 
powers of taxation, eminent domain, police power, ad escheat. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUE OPINION 
The opinion of value of the property is as of January 25, 2023, the date of my last observation of the site.  
Luke Sanders performed the field observation. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 10 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS 
No environmental risk survey of the subject site was provided.  During the observation, there was no note 
made of discolored vegetation or other evidence of an environmental contaminant.   
 
The appraiser strongly advises the client to require a minimum of a Phase I, Environmental Risk Audit on 
the subject property.  Any entity which has or proposes to have inclusion in the chain of title should be 
aware of the potential of environmental hazards being present on the subject property as the potential 
liability for reclaiming the property could be spread over all entities which hold or have held an interest in 
the site. 
 
The appraiser assumes no responsibility for the discovery or removal of hazardous or toxic substances, 
should they be present.  Additionally, the appraiser reserves the right to amend the opinion of value should 
any environmental hazard be found. 

ZONING 
According to the City of North Little Rock, the subject property is in an area which is zoned "I-2" for 
Industrial use.  

TAX DATA AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
In Arkansas, real estate is assessed by the Pulaski County Tax Assessor and the tax collected by the County 
Collector for the city and county.  There is no state real property tax.  Assessment is based on 20% of the 
appraised valuation and the current assessment rate is established by the County Quorum Court and public 
vote.  A rate of 59 mills is applicable for property located in the City of North Little Rock.  The subject 
property is designated Parcel#24N0020000200, and has been appraised and assessed by Pulaski County as 
follows: 
 
 

VALUE APPRAISED ASSESSED 

LAND $38,400 $7,680 

BUILDING $0 $0.00 

TOTAL $38,400 $7,680 
 
Taxes for 2022 are approximately $61.86 
 
According to the Pulaski County Tax Collector the subject property is not located in any known 
infrastructure improvement districts. 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 11 
 

FLOOD ZONE STATUS 
The subject property appears to be in a flood zone or flood hazard area according to the map, however 
Norman Clifton indicated that the site has been built up and is at or above the 248 foot flood level indicated 
for the site.  We have included a survey that indicates the site height is out of the floodplain.  The applicable 
flood insurance rate map, Community Panel #05119C0481G, furnished by the National Flood Insurance 
Program of the Federal Emergency Management Agency, is included as an exhibit in this report.  However, 
the appraiser is not qualified to determine the exact boundaries of the subject tract or flood hazard areas.  
Therefore, an exact determination of flood impacts by a surveyor or engineer is recommended. 

FLOOD MAP 
 

 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 12 
 

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY OF SITE  

 
 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 13 
 

OWNER OF RECORD 
According to the records of the Pulaski County Assessor, the subject property is listed in the name of Clifton 
Family, LLLP, of North Little Rock, Arkansas. 

HISTORY OF PROPERTY CONVEYANCES 
The Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice require that a sales history of the property be 
included with all appraisal reports.  Standards Rule 1-5 states that "In developing a real property appraisal, 
an appraiser must... 
 

(a)  Analyze all agreements of sale, options, and listings of the subject property current as of 
the effective date of the appraisal; and 

 
(b) Analyze all sales of the subject property that occurred within the three (3) years prior to 

the effective date of the appraisal. 
 
The intent of this requirement is to encourage the research and analysis of prior sales of the subject; the 
time frames cited are minimums.  A survey of county records covering the previous three years revealed 
no transfers of the subject property.   

MARKET CONDITIONS 
The local market for this type of property is stable.  The subject property is a vacant tract within The City 
of North Little Rock.  This type of property will generally have a reasonable exposure time estimated to be 
6 to 12 months before the January 25, 2023 effective date of this appraisal based on a value range from 
$60,000 to $140,000 per acre foot which is appropriate for the subject type of property.  The marketing 
time is estimated to be 9 months after the effective date of this report. 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 14 
 

DEFINITION OF APPRAISAL 
An appraisal is an opinion of value of an adequately described property as of a specific moment in time, 
supported by relevant data peculiar to the property.  It reflects the attitudes of buyers and sellers in a 
sometimes poorly defined market.  Because of constant change, the value opinion applies only on the 
effective date of the appraisal.  It is intended as a guide to the client, and only to the client as an aid in the 
decision-making process.  An appraisal of value is an objective opinion so that the subjectivity of the client 
may be a factor in subsequent negotiations on price.  Neither sale price nor cost are necessarily value, only 
elements in the estimation of value.  Cost or the last sale price of the property appraised maybe the best 
indication of value. 
 
The concept of market value involves the entire spectrum of the real estate market with consideration given 
to the highest and best use of the land as if vacant, alternate uses of the land as if vacant, and the contribution 
of existing improvements, buildings, timber, and mineral resources.  Where highest and best use is 
developed and only one user or buyer is apparent in the market, special care should be exercised in 
consideration of existing supply and demand factors as well as the principle of use-density. 

SCOPE OF WORK 
The scope of work must include the research and analyses that are necessary to develop credible assignment 
results.  The scope of work is acceptable when it meets or exceeds:  the expectations of parties who are 
regularly intended users for similar assignments; and what an appraiser’s peers' actions would be in 
performing the same or a similar assignment. 
 
This appraisal analysis is completed in several distinct phases; general data collection and analysis, 
neighborhood data collection and analysis, subject property data collection and analysis, highest and best 
use analysis, sales comparison collection, verification and analysis, valuation, and report preparation.  Each 
phase will be applied as deemed appropriate by the appraisers for this assignment. 
 
A series of specific steps are undertaken to complete each phase, described below. 
 
1) General Data Collection and Analysis 
 

The general data collection and analysis phase involves collection of data relating to national, 
regional, and local trends, and identification and analysis of the social, governmental, and 
environmental forces affecting the market value of the subject property. 

 
2) Neighborhood Data Collection and Analysis 
 

The neighborhood data collection and analysis phase entails inspecting the subject neighborhood; 
collection of data related to growth trends, demographics, physical characteristics, available 
utilities, public improvements, and services, etc.; and analyzing the collected data focusing on its 
effect on the subject property. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 15 
 

 SCOPE OF WORK, Continued 
 
3) Subject Property Data Collection and Analysis 
 

In the subject property data collection and analysis phase, I inspect the subject property and 
interview the owner; review available site plans, and obtain real estate taxes, zoning, and other 
information from public sources; and analyze the functionality, condition, etc. of the subject 
property improvements. 

 
4) Market Data Collection and Analysis 
 

In the market data collection and analysis phase, I obtain and verify comparable sales data for 
vacant land from public records; inspect the comparable land sales.  All data will be verified when 
possible. 

 
5) Highest and Best Use Analysis 
 

In highest and best use analysis, I analyze all previously obtained data within the framework of 
supply and demand, legal use, physically possible use, feasibility use and that use which are 
normally productive both for the site as if vacant, and the use of the property as improved. 

 
6) Valuation 
 

In the valuation phase, I will apply the sales comparison approach to develop an opinion of land 
value.  These indications of value are then reconciled into a final value opinion. 

 
7) Report Preparation 
 

The final phase of the appraisal process is report preparation, in which a narrative appraisal report 
is prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Practice and the Code of 
Ethics of the Appraisal Foundation.  This report is presented in a Report Format that is presented 
in sufficient detail to enable the client to read and understand the conclusions and reach similar 
conclusions from the data presented. 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 16 
 

INSPECTION OF SUBJECT 
The subject's site is visualized from the exterior perimeter of the site.  The square footage calculation is 
based on actual the survey provided or other sources identified in this report.  While reasonable care was 
exercised in measuring, the final square footage should be considered an approximation and not guaranteed. 
 
The observation of the comparable sales consists of a view that is available from the public right of way or 
easement. The site will not be accessed for this observation and site conditions may limit the extent of the 
available view of the comparable sale’s facade. Photo images may be obtained from this point of view. 
 
Be aware of the appraiser's definition of "inspection".  The term inspection found anywhere in this report 
is to mean a "visual inventory" of the subject's or comparable property's components.  The appraiser inspects 
the subject property to obtain a visual inventory of the property components for assistance only in forming 
our opinion of value.  The appraiser is not experienced or trained with respect to electrical, plumbing, and 
septic systems, nor well water quality or well water systems, heat/air systems, structural integrity or 
building components, engineering aspects related to site area, easements, ecological, or site/neighborhood 
drainage aspects.  The appraiser does not have knowledge in the proper installation of EFIS, detecting the 
presence of mold, the cause of mold, the type of mold or whether mold might pose any risk to the property 
or its inhabitants, or in evaluating any risk that might be posed by these products.  The appraiser does not 
know if the subject property contains lead base paint, asbestos, or urea-formaldehyde foam insulation.  
Mechanical systems, plumbing systems, electrical systems, and HVAC equipment and fixtures are not 
cycled for testing.  The appraiser is unable to warrant adequacy or operational quality of items outside of 
the appraiser’s area of training and actual knowledge.  It is significant to note that this report reflects the 
appraiser’s opinion of value.  It is not a structural or mechanical engineers report, environmental study, or 
a legal opinion based upon local, state, or federal law.  It cannot be relied upon to disclose conditions and 
or defects in the property.  If further information is desired regarding these areas of expertise, the 
client/intended user should contact a professional in those areas. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 17 
 

DEFINITION OF VALUE 
The most probable price in terms of money which a property should bring in a competitive and open market 
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably and 
assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus.  Implicit in this definition are the consummation of a 
sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 
 

1. Buyer and seller are typically motivated. 
2. Both parties are well informed or well advised and acting in what they consider their best 

interests. 
3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market. 
4. Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto; and 
5. The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special 

or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 
(12 C.F.R. Part 34.42(f); 55 Federal Register 34696, August 24, 1990, as amended at 57 Federal Register 
12202, April 9, 1992; Federal Register 29499, June 7, 1994) 
 
Numerous definitions of Market Value have been devised over the years by professional organizations, 
government bodies, courts, and etcetera. 
 
The Supreme Courts of most states have handed down definitions of Market Value for use in the state 
courts.  These definitions are subject to frequent change. 
 
Persons performing appraisal services which may be subject to litigation are cautioned to seek the exact 
definition of Market Value in the jurisdiction in which the services are being performed. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 18 
 

REGIONAL/CITY DATA 
 
POPULATION  
 
Greater Little Rock is a metropolitan area covering four counties in Central Arkansas with a 2010 
population of 671,459 and increase of 15% over 2000. At the heart of the area is Little Rock, the state 
capitol and Arkansas’ largest city with a population of 193,524, and North Little Rock, the state’s third 
largest community, with a population of 62,304. The Little Rock/North Little Rock metropolitan statistical 
area has a 2010 per capita income of $39,161 which is 98.1% of the national average. The cities are joined 
by the Arkansas River and are in Pulaski County in the exact center of the state, where the mountains meet 
the delta. 
 
Greater Little Rock is unique in that it is centered where the Southeast meets the Southwest. Distance by 
highway to major nearby cities include: Dallas - 307 miles; Houston - 443 miles; Oklahoma City - 348 
miles; Tulsa - 228 miles; Kansas City - 405 miles; Atlanta - 523 miles; Memphis - 139 miles; and New 
Orleans - 437 miles. 
 
Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 19 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
POPULATION, Continued  
 
Population Growth 
 
    1980  1990  2000  2010 
 
Little Rock MSA  474,874  523,457  583,845 671,459 
 
Pulaski County   340,613  360,000* 361,474 382,748 
 
Faulkner County  46,192  60,006  86,014  113,237 
 
Lonoke County   34,518  39,268  52,828  68,356 
 
Saline County   53,161  64,183  83,529  107,118 
 
Benton    17,437  18,177  21,906  30,681 
 
Bryant    2,682  5,269  9,764  16,688 
 
Cabot    4,806  8,319  14,261  23,776 
 
Carlisle    2,567  2,253  2,304  2,214 
 
Conway    20,375  26,481  43,167  58,908 
 
England    3,081  3,351  2,972  2,825 
 
Greenbrier   3,081  3,351  2,972  4,706 
 
Jacksonville   27,589  29,961  29,916  28,364 
 
Little Rock   158,915  180,925  183,133 193,524 
 
Lonoke    4,128  4,022  4,287  4,245 
 
Maumelle   -  6,912  10,557  17,163 
 
Mayflower   1,381  1,415  1,631  2,234 
 
North Little Rock    63,567  60,433  62,304 
 
Sherwood   10,586  19,452  21,511  29,523 
 
Source: *U.S. Bureau of the Census and **Metroplan 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 20 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
GEOGRAPHY 
 
Climate 
 
Annual Average Temperature     61.7 degrees Fahrenheit 
 
Summer (July) Temperature     81.4 degrees Fahrenheit 
 
Winter (January) Temperature     39.5 degrees Fahrenheit 
 
Normal Degree Days, Annual (Twenty-year Average)  354 
 
Annual Average Rainfall      48.52" 
 
Annual Average Snowfall     5.2" 
 
Annual Average Relative Humidity    68% 
 
Per Cent of Possible Sunshine     72% 
 
Number of Days Over Ninety Degrees    76 
 
Highest Recorded Temperature     111 degrees Fahrenheit 
 
Lowest Recorded Temperature     -13 degrees Fahrenheit 
 
Prevailing Wind      Southwest 
 
Average Velocity      8.1 miles per hour 
 
 
Altitude 
 
The area is 286 feet above sea level; residential areas range from 300 feet to 630 feet above sea level. 
 
 
Area 
 
Little Rock  122.31 square miles 
 
North Little Rock 44.0 square miles 
 
Pulaski County  781.0 square miles 
 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 21 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
HOUSING 
 
Apartments 
Apartments in the area range from efficiency to luxury and from garden style to high-rise, with a varied 
price range. 
 
Housing 
The Little Rock/North Little Rock MSA has a plenitude of quality, low-cost housing. According to the 2000 
Census, there are 214,546 housing units in the Little Rock/North Little Rock Metropolitan Statistical Area.  
The Little Rock/North Little Rock MSA’s housing index is 81.4 (100.0 in the national average).  Houses 
may range from as low as $50,000 to as high as $500,000 and up in more prestigious areas.  According to 
the Central Arkansas Regional Multiple Listing Service, the average sales price for a 3-bedroom home in 
Pulaski County is $88,041 (including both new and pre-owned homes) and the average time on the market 
is 120 days. 
 
 
LABOR 
 
 
Arkansas Right to Work 
 
In 1944, the people of Arkansas amended the state constitution to ensure that all people in Arkansas would 
have the right to work, regardless of their affiliation or non-affiliation with any type of labor union.  Another 
important law concerns peaceful labor relations. Act 193 provides that any violence which takes place on 
any picket line or in conjunction with a labor dispute becomes a felony and not a misdemeanor, and the 
person committing the act of violence is liable for confinement in the state penitentiary for not less than 
one year. 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 22 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
GOVERNMENT 
 
Little Rock operates under the city manager form of government.  The board of Directors is composed of 
11 people, seven elected from wards, three at large positions and a directly elected mayor. 
 
Little Rock has a Class 2 fire rating.  The department operates 20 fire stations all Class A equipped. 
 
North Little Rock operates under a mayor-alderman form of government.  The city has a Class 2 fire rating. 
  
Pulaski County Sheriff’s Department provides police protection and operates the county correctional 
facility. 
 
Approximately 21 volunteer fire departments serve areas other than Little Rock, North Little Rock, and 
Jacksonville. 
 
The Little Rock Air Force Base, a Military Airlift command facility, is located seventeen miles north of 
Little Rock in Jacksonville.  The facility is valued at $4 billion and the land was donated to the Air Force 
in 1951 by the citizens of Arkansas.  The Strategic Air Command opened the base four years later and in 
April 1970 the 134th Tactical Airlift Wing with its C-130 Hercules cargo transport aircraft, made its home 
at Little Rock.  On December 1, 1991 under Air Force Reorganization, the wing was designated the 314th 
Airlift Wing. 
 
Taxes 
 
Use Tax 
The Arkansas compensating use tax of 5.125 per cent is levied on tangible personal property purchased 
from outside the state of Arkansas for use, storage, or consumption within the state of Arkansas.  The 
exemption of the sales tax applies to the use tax. 
 
Personal Income Tax 
Resident individuals, estates and trusts, and nonresident individuals, estates, and trusts deriving income 
from within the state are subject to a tax on their net income.  
 
To arrive at net taxable income, the taxpayer may elect either to itemize deductions or to use the standard 
deductions of one thousand dollars or ten per cent of gross income, whichever is the lesser.  Federal income 
tax is not deductible from income subject to Arkansas’ personal income tax. 
 
State Property Tax 
There is not state property tax in Arkansas. 
 
Sales Tax 
The Arkansas sales tax is a per cent of gross receipts from the sales of tangible personal property and certain 
selected services.  The tax is paid by the consumer at the point of final sales and is computed on the total 
consideration received without any deductions for the cost of labor.  “Sale” includes the lease of rental of 
tangible personal property. 
 
Taxable services include the sales of gas, water, electricity, telephone and telegraph services, and repair 
services. 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 23 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
The following exemptions applicable to industry are offered: 
  Goods used in manufacturing, compounding, processing, assembling, or preparing products for 

sale. 
  Machinery and equipment used for repair, replacement, or expansion of existing manufacturing or 

processing facilities; and installations for prevention or reduction of air or water pollution. 
 
City and County Taxes 
The property tax is the principle source of revenue for Arkansas counties and municipalities. Business firms 
as well as individuals are subject to annual taxes on all real and personal property with exchange value.  
The legal ratio of assessment is twenty per cent and applies to the true market value of real property and to 
the usual selling price of personal property.  Business property is assessed at the same legal ratio as 
individual property, and the basis for assessment varies among types of property or business activity.  
Merchants; stocks and manufacturers’ inventories are assessed at their annual average value.  The annual 
tax rate is the aggregate of all levies for county, municipal, school, and other special district purposes within 
constitutional and statutory limits. School district rates are not limited but are subject to approval each year 
by the voters in each school district. 
 
An example of property tax compilation in Little Rock is: 
 
Appraised Market Value of Taxable Property   $100,000.00 
 
Assess Taxable Value       $20,000.00 
 
Assuming 20% legal Assessment ratio ($100,000 x 20%) 
Millage Applicable per $1,000      $69.00 
 
Taxable Value (aggregate: County + City +School District) 
Tax Due:            $1,380.00 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 24 
 

REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
EDUCATION 
 
Educational facilities in the Little Rock area range from per-kindergarten to graduate institutions.  Area 
schools are recognized for their high academic standards, well-trained faculties, and well-equipped 
classrooms, which combine to provide quality education 
 
Little Rock School District 
810 West Markham 
Little Rock, AR 72201 
 
 
North Little Rock School District 
2700 Poplar 
North Little Rock, AR 72215 
 
Pulaski County Special School District 
925 East Dixon Road 
Little Rock, AR 72206 
 
Private and Parochial Schools 
 
Several private and parochial schools in the Greater Little Rock Area offer accredited educational programs 
from the per-kindergarten through high-school level.  Special schools include several exceptional schools, 
such as the Arkansas School for the Blind and the Arkansas School for the Deaf. 
 
Arkansas Baptist College 
1600 Bishop Street 
Little Rock, AR 72203 
 
Central Baptist College 
1501 College Avenue 
Conway, AR 72032 
 
Hendrix College 
1600 Washington Avenue 
Conway, AR 72032 
 
Philander Smith College 
812 West 13th Street 
Little Rock, AR 72201 
 
Pulaski Technical College 
3000 West Scenic 
North Little Rock, AR 72118 
 
University of Arkansas 
Little Rock 
2801 South University 
Little Rock, AR 72204 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 25 
 

 REGIONAL/CITY DATA, Continued 
 
EDUCATION, Continued 
 
University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences 
4301 West Markham 
Little Rock, AR 72205 
 
UALR School of Law 
1201 McAlmont 
Little Rock, AR 72202 
 
University of Central Arkansas 
201 Donaghey 
Conway, AR 72202 
 
HEALTH CARE 
 
Medical Facilities in the Little Rock area provide the most efficient, comprehensive quality service possible 
in health care for the more than 2 million people in the metropolitan area and state. The Metropolitan Area 
has more than 15,000 licensed health professionals and 20 state-of-the-art hospital facilities. 
 
CULTURE 
 
Religious Community 
 
The Greater Little Rock area has more than 60 different religious denominations represented. Located in 
the “Bible Belt”, Central Arkansas has a strong religious heritage.  Church attendance and a strong moral 
character add to the unique lifestyle of the area. 
 
Visual Arts 
 
The Arkansas Arts Center, located in MacArthur Park, offers outstanding traveling exhibits.  The Arts 
Center has four galleries, a Children’s gallery, and classrooms used in courses in the visual and performing 
arts, a 389-seat theater, library, and gift shop. 
 
Performing Arts 
 
The performing arts community of Little Rock consists of: Arkansas Symphony Orchestra, Ballet Arkansas, 
Chamber Music Society of Little Rock, Community Concerts Association, Little Rock Community Theater, 
Arkansas Repertory Theater, The Broadway Theater Series, UALR Theater Arts and Dance Department, 
Wildwood Park, and many others.  Programs and performances are held throughout the year. 
 
Libraries 
 
Public Libraries in central Arkansas have combined collections of over 1,750,000 books, 11,700 
periodicals, and a variety of CD-ROM and on-line databases.  Public libraries in the area include the 
Arkansas State Library, incorporating the State Library for Blind and Physically Handicapped; the 11-
member Central Arkansas Library System; and the William F. Laman Library. Academic libraries are 
located at Arkansas Baptist College; Philander Smith College; Shorter College; and the University of 
Arkansas at Little Rock. Special libraries include the Arkansas Arts Center Library; the Arkansas History 
Commission; Arkansas School for the Blind Library; Arkansas School of the Deaf Library; Arkansas 
Supreme Court Library; Little Rock Air Force Base Library; ULAR Law School Library, containing the 
Pulaski County Law Library; the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences Library. 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 26 
 

Historic Preservation 
 
Little Rock offers an active program of historic preservation of the Quapaw Quarter historic preservation.  
The Quapaw Quarter Association, a private group, is working to preserve and restore architecturally and 
historically significant antebellum and Victorian structures. 
 
The River Market 
 
The Little Rock River Market, an entertainment development on East Markham Street, opened in 1996. It 
was the first step toward the creation of a cultural and entertainment district in downtown Little Rock. 
Situated between the Market and Riverfront Park, two pavilions house a farmer’s market, open Tuesdays, 
and Saturdays. Merchants in the inner pavilion offer a cornucopia of products and vegetables. 
 
Attractions to See 
 
La Petite Roche; Historic Arkansas Museum; Arkansas’ first state capitol, Old State House Museum; The 
River Market District; Clinton Presidential Museum; State Capitol; the Little Rock Zoo, Museum of 
Discovery; the Children’s Museum of Arkansas; Murray Lock and Dam; Villa Marre; Riverfront Park; 
Arkansas Arts Center, Decorative Arts Museum; Wild River County, the Old Mill, Central High School 
Museum Visitors Center, Museum of Discovery and the UALR Planetarium are just a few 
 
Parks 
 
There are 56 parks in Little Rock with more than 6,000 acres and 12 parks in North Little Rock.  There are 
many state and national parks within a sixty-mile radius of Little Rock which provide recreation and 
camping facilities.   They include Petit Jean State Park, DeGray State Park, Lake Ouachita State Park, 
Ouachita National Forest, and Pinnacle Mountain State Park. 
 
Sports 
 
North Little Rock’s Dickey-Stephens Park is the home of the Class AA Minor League Arkansas Travelers, 
a farm club of the Anaheim Angels.  War Memorial Stadium hosts several of the University of Arkansas 
Razorback’s home football schedules.  The Stephens Center is the home court for the University of 
Arkansas Little Rock Trojans (an NCAA Division 1 basketball team). 
 
Lakes 
 
Several lakes in the Little Rock area provide excellent fishing, sailing, and other sports.  They include Lake 
Maumelle, Lake Winona, Lake Conway, Greer Ferry Lake, Lake Ouachita, Lake Hamilton, Lake Catherine, 
and DeGray Lake. 
 
Conventions 
 
The central location of the Little Rock region and its excellent facilities make this a natural place for 
conventions, sales meeting, sporting events, and other gatherings. Facilities include Statehouse Convention 
and Conference Center, Governor’s Exhibition Hall, Statehouse Plaza, and Robinson Center. A 650-space 
public parking deck is one block from Statehouse Convention Center.  Robinson Center includes 560-space 
of underground parking. In addition, there are several hundred parking spaces available within a few blocks. 
Accommodations range from economical to luxurious and there are more than 6,200 available rooms. 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 27 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD DATA 
The subject property is basically bound by the Arkansas River to the south, Interstate 440 to the east, and 
Interstate 30 to the west, and north.  The immediate area is mostly industrial type properties.  The area 
west of the subject is a high-density commercial area with some industrial type properties scattered north 
and south of Broadway.  Schools and churches are scattered throughout the neighborhood.  The labor 
supply in the area is sufficient for most employers, and wages are reasonable.  All typical municipal 
utilities are available in the area.  Supplies are adequate, and costs are judged reasonable.  Both police and 
fire protection are considered to be adequate in the neighborhood. Typical streets in the area are asphalt, 
with concrete curbs and gutters, sidewalks, and storm sewers, and mercury vapor streetlights.  No adverse 
external influences were noted at the time of observation.  Although no soil or subsoil samples have been 
taken within the subject neighborhood, it has been assumed that there are no unstable conditions which 
would cause significant structural problems to the improvements. 
 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 28 
 

SITE DATA 
 
The subject site is a large acreage tract of land located on Highway 165.  The subject site is just east of the 
North Little Rock Waste-Water plant and just west of the Interstate 440 interchange. The subject site 
contains a total of approximately 7.7 acres according to the legal description provided.  The subject site has 
frontage and access along the south right of way of Highway 165.  As stated earlier the subject site is not 
located in a flood hazard area or zone.   
 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 29 
 

DEFINITION OF HIGHEST AND BEST USE 
Highest and best use is defined as the reasonable and probable use that supports the highest present value, 
as defined, as of the date of the appraisal.  It is that use, from among reasonably probable and legal 
alternative uses, found to be physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and which 
results in highest land value. 
 
Implied in these definitions is that the determination of highest and best use considers the contribution of a 
specific use to the community and community development goals as well as the benefits of that use to 
individual property owners.  An additional implication is that the determination of highest and best use 
results from the appraiser's judgment and analytical skill, that is, that the use determined from analysis 
represents an opinion, not a fact to be found.  In appraisal practice, the concept of highest and best use 
represents the premise upon which value is based.  In the context of "most probable selling price" (market 
value), another appropriate term to reflect highest and best use would be "most probable use."  In the context 
of investment value, an alternative term would be "most profitable use." 
 
Two conclusions of highest and best use must be determined: 
 

(1) The highest and best use of the land as if vacant, and 
 
  (2) The highest and best use of the property as improved.  
 
All data presented in previous sections of this report lead into conclusions of highest and best use. 
 
To meet the test of highest and best use, four criteria must be examined and analyzed:  
 

(1) The use must be physically possible, 
 

(2) The use must be legally permissible, 
 

(3) The use must be financially feasible, and 
 

(4) The use must be maximally productive. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 30 
 

ANALYSIS OF HIGHEST AND BEST USE 
Physically Possible: 
 
The subject property is presently vacant.   
 
Legally Permissible: 
 
The subject is located in an area zoned “I-2” for Industrial use.   
 
 
Financially Feasible: 
 
This appraisal does not encompass nor contemplate a feasibility study. 
 
 
Maximally Productive: 
 
Due to location and zoning, the maximally productive use of the site is for some type of industrial 
development. 
 
 
Analysis of the Site: 
 
The following five factors are examined for the present usage: 
 

1. Adequacy of size of site:  Excellent.  The subject site is a large acreage tract suitable 
for some type of industrial development. 

2. Grade of street and topography: Average.  The subject site is generally at street grade with 
Highway 165. 

3. Visibility:    Average.  The subject site has average visibility for an 
industrial type of property. 

4. Compatibility of traffic flow:  Average.  The subject site is located on a typical two-lane 
street. 

5. Ease of approach:   Good.  The subject site has good access from Highway 
165. 

 
All factors are rated average to good.  I conclude that the site is well suited for some type of industrial 
development. 
 
 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 31 
 

THE APPRAISAL PROCESS 
In arriving at an opinion of market value for a given property, it is customary appraisal practice to assemble 
as much information as considered necessary in three different approaches to the value opinion: The Direct 
Sales Comparison Approach, the Income Approach, and the Cost Approach. 
 
The Direct Sales Comparison Approach utilizes the sales of similar properties as the basis for an indication 
of value for the subject.  Direct comparisons are made between the sales properties and the subject on an 
item by item basis in such areas as location, time of sale, conditions of sale, terms of financing, as well as 
for physical characteristics.  Adjustments are made to the sales price of the comparative property to arrive 
at an indication of what that property would have sold for had it been essentially similar to the subject 
property.  These adjusted sale prices are correlated into an indication of value by this approach. 
 
In the Income Approach, an estimate is made of the market rent which the subject property might command 
based on the rental of competitive space.  Estimates are also made of the appropriate vacancy and expense 
ratios for the subject based on information developed from similar properties in the market.  Thus, an 
indication of the net income which the subject property is capable of producing is developed.  This is the 
basis for any of the capitalization techniques, regardless of which one is indicated by the type of property 
or investor.  The rate of return on investments in similar type properties is derived from the market, and this 
rate of return is used to capitalize the indicated net income into an indication of value by this approach. 
 
In the Cost Approach, an opinion of the site value is first derived by a comparison of other similar sites 
which have sold, to the subject site by the direct sales comparison approach.  An estimate is then made of 
the cost of replacing the subject improvements at today's costs.  From this is deducted the estimated loss in 
value through diminished utility, whether it is from physical, functional, or locational causes.  All such 
estimates of loss in value through diminished utility are taken from market evidence.  The indicated value 
from this approach is then the sum of the site value plus the net value of the improvements. 
 
After arriving at an indication of value by the three approaches, these are correlated into a single conclusion 
of value, based on the approach which has the highest quantity and quality of data available, and the one in 
which the market participant typically has the greatest confidence. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 32 
 

LAND VALUE BY THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 
The Sales Comparison Approach can be defined as follows: 
 

Traditionally, an appraisal procedure in which the market value estimate is predicated upon prices 
paid in actual market transactions and current listings, the former fixing the lower limit of value in 
a static or advancing market (price wise) and fixing the higher limit of value in a declining market; 
and the latter fixing the higher in any market.  It is a process of analyzing sales of similar recently 
sold properties to derive an indication of the most probable sale price of the property being 
appraised. The reliability of this technique is dependent upon (a) the availability of comparable 
sales data, (b) the verification of the sales data, (c) the degree of comparability or extent of 
adjustment necessary for time differences, and (d) the absence of non-typical conditions affecting 
the sale price. 

 
The effectiveness of the Sales Comparison Approach hinges on the accumulation of all pertinent data 
surrounding the sales transactions; such as, Date of Sale, Price, Underlying Motives of buyer and seller, 
Encumbrances, etc., making an analytical comparison of the properties sold with the subject under 
appraisal. 
 
The Market Data Approach or Direct Sales Comparison Approach is used to determine the value of the 
subject site as if vacant.  This is also done by direct comparison to similar sites that have sold or are offered 
for sale.  These comparisons are generally made based on price per square foot, or in some cases, price per 
front foot, or price per acre. 
 
A search through various real estate information services revealed the 4 vacant land sales in the area on the 
following pages. 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 33 
 

COMPARABLE LAND SALES APPROACH CHART 
 

  

Name/Location
Thibault Road, Little 
Rock AR

12 Highway 165 N. 
Little Rock AR

Falkner Lake Road, N. 
Little Rock AR

East Port Drive, 
Little Rock AR

Grantor Thomas Family Trust
Ben Davis Properties, 
LLC

J A Riggs Tractor 
Company 

Walthour-Flake CO 
Inc.

Grantee City of Lttle Rock Ferndale Cutoff, LLC RRE ARK, LLC
M-H Real Estate, 
LLC

Instrument # 2020-063021 2021-015405 2021-074570 2019-032847

Land Size/SF 13.64 10.17 11.43 3.58

Price $1,250,000 $500,000 $500,000 $697,000

Date of Sale 9/15/2020 3/4/2021 4/2/2022 5/22/2019
Gross 

Price/SAC
$91,642.23 $49,164.21 $43,744.53 $194,692.74 

Adjustments 

Time 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Adjusted value $91,642.23 $49,164.21 $43,744.53 $194,692.74 

Location 10.00% 20.00% 20.00% -10.00%

Size 20.00% 10.00% 20.00% -20.00%
Physical 
Characteristics

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Access 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Indicated Value 
Per SF

$119,134.90 $63,913.47 $61,242.34 $136,284.92 

Total 
Adjustments

30.00% 30.00% 40.00% -30.00%

Comparable # 1 2 3 4



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 34 
 

 COMPARABLE AERIAL PHOTGRAPHS 
 
Comp 1 
 

 
Comp 2 
 

   



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 35 
 

COMPARABLE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS,continued 

 
Comp 3 

 

 
 

Comp 4 

 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 36 
 

LAND VALUE BY THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 
 

ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSIONS 
The above listed comparables are judged to be the best market value indicators available for the subject 
property at the present time.  Comparable 1 is the sale of a large acreage tract located on Thibault Road.  
This comparable was purchased by the City of Little Rock is zoned for Industrial use and was adjusted 
slightly for location and moderately for size.  Comparable 2 is located east of the subject property along 
Highway 165.  This comparable sale is zoned I-2 for industrial use and was adjusted slightly for location 
and moderately for size.  Comparable 3 is the sale of large acreage tract located north of the subject on 
Faulkner Lake Road.  This comparable is zoned I-2 for industrial us and was adjusted slightly for location 
and moderately for size. Comparable 4 is the sale of a lot located right by the East Port Road/440 
interchange.  This comparable sale is zoned I-2 for industrial use and was adjusted moderately for size and 
slightly for location.   
 
Based on the size, location, access, and utilities of the subject property, the most emphasis is placed on 
comparable sale numbers 1, 2 and 4 with support from sale 3.  Therefore, an applicable per acre value 
within this range appears to be appropriate.  From the comparable market data available at the present time, 
it appears a value of $63,913 to $136,284 per acre is appropriate for the subject property. 
 
 
7.7 AC @ $90,000 per AC  = $693,000 
 

SEVEN HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
 

$700,000 (ROUNDED) 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 37 
 

Comparable Locations Map 

 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 38 
 

RECONCILIATION AND FINAL VALUE OPINION 
 
Value Indications are as follows: 
 

 
COST APPROACH 

 
N/A 

 
SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 

 
$700,000 

 
INCOME APPROACH 

 
N/A 

 
RECONCILIATION AND FINAL VALUE OPINION 

 
Therefore, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the subject property as defined within this report as of 
January 25, 2023, is rounded to: 
 
 SEVEN HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
 
 $700,000 
 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 39 
 

CERTIFICATION OF THE APPRAISERS 
 
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
 

- The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 
- the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 

assumptions and limiting conditions are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional 
analyses, opinions, and conclusions, 

- I have no present of prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, 
and I have no personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

- I have not performed any services as an appraiser or in any other capacity regarding the 
subject property within the 3-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 
appraisal assignment. 

- I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 
involved with this assignment. 

- My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 
predetermined results. 

- My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development 
or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the 
client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the 
occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

- My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, 
in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. 

- No one provided significant business and/or intangible asset appraisal assistance to the 
person signing this certification 

- The property was personally inspected on the effective date of the appraisal by Luke 
Sanders. 

 
January 25, 2023 
 

 
 Dwight Pattison      Luke Sanders 
 State Certified General Appraiser State Registered Appraiser 
 License #CG0200 License #SR3640 
 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 40 
 

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 
 
 
This Appraisal Report, the Letter of Transmittal and the Certificate of Value are hereby made expressly subject to the following Assumptions and 
Limiting Conditions; and, any Special Limiting Conditions which may be contained elsewhere in the Report are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference.  
 
 ASSUMPTIONS 
 
This assignment cannot proceed without making some general assumptions. However, these assumptions should not be taken lightly or as a matter-
of-fact. If any of these assumptions are found to be inaccurate, the opinions and conclusions reached herein could be in error. The user should 
decide if these assumptions are acceptable. The appraiser is not competent in the following fields and makes no guarantees, express or implied, 
regarding the topics of these assumptions. Each of these assumptions can be explored by other experts and professions. Unless otherwise stated, 
described, and considered in this report it is assumed that: 
 
1 the title to the property is good and marketable. No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided or for matters pertaining to legal 

or title considerations. And, that the property is free and clear of any liens or encumbrances. 
2 the property is under responsible ownership and competent management. 
3 all engineering studies, land surveys, and other professional reports relied on by the appraiser are correct. If such studies are not provided to the 

appraiser it is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, structure, or any other property component 
that would render it more or less valuable. 

4 the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 
5 the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions. The present zoning of the subject property was verified with 

local planning officials, but the appraiser cannot be responsible for any error reported by the city officials and/or city staff.  
6 all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, consent, and other legislative or administrative authority from any state, or national government, 

or private entity or organizations have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the opinion of value is based. This includes the 
American Disabilities Act. 

7 the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or property lines of the property described and that there is no 
encroachment or trespass.  

8 there are no hazardous or toxic materials on, in, or nearby the property. The presence of substances such as, but not limited to asbestos, urea 
formaldehyde foam insulation, radon, mold and other potentially hazardous or toxic materials would significantly affect the opinion of value 
formed. The opinions and conclusions are predicated on the assumption that there is no such material on, in, or near the property that would 
cause a loss in value. 

9 any proposed improvements are assumed to be completed in a good competent manner in accordance with the submitted plans and 
specifications. 

10 the structure was properly designed and constructed. That no defects have occurred over time. This includes but is not limited to termite damage. 
All mechanical components are assumed to be in operable condition and are appropriate for the structure. All electrical and plumbing equipment 
is appropriate and in working order. That the insulation is adequate.  

11 the property has a plentiful supply of potable water, and that adequate sewage disposal is available. 
12 if a survey was not provided to the appraiser, the public records or dimensions taken from available maps, and/or plats are correct with respect 

to size and shape. 
13 the property has a legal and physical means of ingress and egress. 
14 the subject property is legally and physically suitable for occupancy and livability. If vacant land, that the site is approved to sell and ready to 

be built on and occupied. 
15 market forces remain relatively constant in the future. If an opinion of marketing time is formed the user should be cautious when relying on 

this opinion as the appraiser cannot foresee spastic changes in these forces. 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 41 
 

 LIMITING CONDITIONS 
 
This appraisal and report were customized for a specific property, use, and user, at a specific time. Therefore, this appraisal and report are only 
reliable under the following limited conditions: 
 
1. The appraiser is not required to give further consultation, testimony, or attend in court with reference to the property in question unless 
arrangements have been previously made. If testimony or deposition is required because of subpoena, the client shall be responsible for any 
additional time, fees, and charges regardless of the party issuing the subpoena.  
 
2. The possession of this report or a copy thereof does not carry with it the right of publication or distribution. Neither all nor any part of the contents 
of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the appraisers or the firm with which they are connected) shall be disseminated 
to the public through advertising media, public relations media, news media, sales media, or any other public means of communications without 
prior written consent and approval of the undersigned. 
 
3. The appraisal report is to be used only for the herein stated intended use, and by the stated intended user.   
 
4. The appraiser cannot be responsible for unforeseen market changes that occur after the value date.   
 
5. Sketches, maps, plats, photographs, and the like are presented only to assist the reader of the report in visualizing the property and their accuracy 
is not warranted. 
 
6. If the appraisal is made on proposed construction from plans and specifications, any deviation in the completed structure invalidates this report.  
 
7. The user must read and understand the report in its entirety. Any lack of understanding about this appraisal could result in its misuse, which 
might put the user in jeopardy.  
 
8. Secondary opinions and conclusions made by the appraiser are formed only to contribute to the primary function of the appraisal, which is to 
form opinions and conclusions as the herein stated intended use and purpose. These secondary opinions include but are not limited to square footage 
calculations, effective age, highest and best use, replacement cost new, etcetera. Isolating and inappropriately using one of these secondary opinions 
or conclusions out of context could jeopardize the user.  
 
9. The appraiser(s) reserve the right to alter statements, analysis, conclusions, or any value estimate in the analyses if there becomes known to us 
facts pertinent to the appraisal process, which were unknown to us when the report was completed. 
 
10. There is no accountability, obligation, or liability to any third party. If this report is placed in the hands of anyone other than the client, the client 
shall make such party aware of all the limiting conditions and assumptions of the assignment and related discussions. The appraiser assumes no 
responsibility for any cost incurred to discover or correct any deficiencies presented in the property. 
 
11. The appraiser assumes no responsibility for any cost or consequences arising due to the need, or the lack of need for flood hazard insurance. 
An agent for the Federal Flood Insurance Program should be contacted to determine the actual need for Flood Hazard Insurance. 
 
12. Authentic copies of this report are signed in green ink with a black seal. Other copies may be unauthorized and may have been altered.  
 
13. Acceptance of, and/or use of, this report constitutes acceptance of the assumptions and conditions contained herein. 
 

 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 42 
 

 



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 43 
 
  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 44 
 

  



 

Arkansas Appraisal Associates Page 45 
 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(6) 
 
 

White Oak Bar Screen Equipment Purchase 

 

The existing bar screens were installed during the White Oak Bayou Lift Station improvements project 

that completed in 2003.  This equipment has exceeded its life expectancy of 15-20 years and requires 

frequent repairs to maintain operation. The existing equipment is a “Climber” style that automatically 

lowers into the 34 ft deep structure and clears the ¾" spaced screen of debris.  The debris is brought 

up to the top and dumped into a hopper that conveys it to a dumpster.  This system is dangerous to 

work on as it relies on a mechanical brake to support itself at the top of the structure.  When the brake 

fails, the rake plummets to the bottom in a violent manner, potentially endangering staff and further 

damaging the equipment.  

 

Several members of the NLRWU staff have researched replacement options and discovered a safer, 

more maintenance friendly alternative called the “Flex Rake”. The Flex Rake design also allows for 

better debris removal efficiency due to its ¼” screen spacing.  The heart of this design includes multiple 

rakes secured in a continuous loop of links that do not require the braking system.  The pictures below 

further illustrate the difference in design concepts. 

 

 

 
PROPOSED FLEX RAKE STYLE  

                        E XISTING CLIMBER RAKE STYLE  



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All maintenance of the Flex Rake style is performed above the deck of the concrete bar screen 

structure at a convenient height located to the side of the open pit.  Our existing climber style 

requires strapping the rake in place to prevent dropping while simultaneously exposing 

mechanics to the dangers of working over a 34 ft deep open pit.  The original manufacturer of 

the Flex Rake style is Duperon.  Since it was a successful design, many manufacturers have 

begun reverse engineering and building units similar to the Duperon original.  Because of the 

critical nature and cost of this equipment, staff was careful in developing the bid specifications 

and required manufacturers to have at least 25 installations that have been in operation for at 

least 5 years.  The advertisement for bids were conducted, and Duperon was the only 

manufacturer that responded due to these requirements.  The Duperon brand is represented 

locally through Jack Tyler Engineering.  $1,200,000 for replacement of these bar screens is 

included in the 2023 budget. 

 

Action Requested: 

Authorize staff to award contract to purchase the Duperon Flex Rake IQ bar screen 

equipment through Jack Tyler Engineering in the amount of $884,000.  Staff would like to 

purchase the equipment direct and secure a contractor separately to eliminate further 

expense due to contractor equipment mark up costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

(7) 
 
 

NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
 

The Employee Handbook is a crucial document for our organization, providing clear guidelines, 
expectations, and benefits information to employees. In today's rapidly evolving business 
landscape, it's more important than ever to have an updated and comprehensive Employee 
Handbook.  The last update for the Employee Handbook which was adopted by the Committee 
was 2008. 
 
Updating the Employee Handbook helps ensure that it reflects current laws and regulations. 
This is especially important in the utility industry, which is heavily regulated and subject to 
frequent changes in legislation. Keeping the handbook current helps prevent legal issues and 
ensures compliance with all relevant laws. 
 
Second, updating the Employee Handbook helps to improve communication between 
management and employees. The handbook should clearly outline company policies, 
procedures, and expectations for employees, providing a comprehensive reference for 
employees to consult when they have questions or concerns. This helps to minimize 
misunderstandings and ensures that everyone is on the same page, improving overall 
communication and collaboration within the organization. 
 
An updated Employee Handbook can also help to improve employee engagement and 
satisfaction. By clearly communicating company policies and procedures, employees are able 
to understand what is expected of them, and they are able to perform their jobs more 
effectively. 
 
The Employee Handbook is a crucial step in ensuring that North Little Rock Wastewater 
remains compliant, communicative, engaged, and productive.   Additionally, updating the 
Employee Handbook demonstrates that the Utility values its employees and is committed to 
maintaining a safe, fair, and supportive work environment.   
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
 

Adopt the revised and updated Employee Handbook with the provision the Director can make 
policy changes from time to time as needed with legal counsel’s guidance. 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

DIRECTOR’S HIGHLIGHTS 
 

  Michael Clayton, February 8, 2023 

January 2023 Highlights 

 

NLRW Engineering is currently advertising two major projects for secondary sewer 

rehabilitation as part of our efforts to meet the annual goal of replacing or rehabilitating 68,000 

linear feet a year.  The first project is another pipe bursting job known as the Broadway Area 

Pipe Bursting 2023 Collection System Renewal which consists of 23,234 linear feet 6” 8” & 10” 

gravity sewer rehabilitation.  The second project is another Cured In-Place Pipe rehabilitation 

job known as the Broadway Area CIPP 2023 Collection System Renewal which consists of 

37,112 linear feet of 6”-18” gravity sewer rehabilitation. 

Administration Staff has completed an exhaustive review to update the Employee Handbook 

and it is ready for Committee adoption. 

I have been working with the Arkansas Water and Wastewater Managers Association 

Legislative Committee monitoring the legislative activities regarding the water industry.  The 

Governor’s priorities are Education, Prison and Tax Reform.  We believe there is not much 

time or fortitude for significant legislative bills impacting our industry. 

On February 25, Staff participated in a training session with Scenic Hill Solar to develop a 

better understanding of the tools available with the SCADA monitoring of the Five Mile Solar 

Array. 

Met with Robert Birch on February 12 to discuss reserving or transferring a 33-acre tract of 

land across the highway from the Faulkner Lake WRF for future use of treatment facilities. 

Met with Mayor Townsend of Sherwood on Friday, February 10 to discuss exploring and 

promoting regionalism in wastewater using the framework back in 2009 from the UALR 

“Unraveling the Maze” study promoting the merger of the two wastewater facilities.  

 

Discussions are underway with HDR who is working for Union Pacific regarding the expansion 

of railroad tracks and relocation of an existing drainage ditch over the existing 24” and 36” 

gravity interceptors in the Dark Hollow Area.  There is a conflict with improvements proposed 

by Union Pacific Railroad and the best solution will be to abandon the existing 24” interceptor.  

A new higher capacity 36” gravity interceptor will need to be constructed at a lower elevation 

with a minimum of 48” bore under existing railroad tracks. 


